AJMER VIDYUT VITRAN NIGAM LTD.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) - U40103RJ2000SGC016482

Regd. Office: Vidyut Bhawan, Panchsheel Nagar, Makarwali Road, Ajmer- 305 004

TENDER SPECIFICATION NO: TN RA -01/2023-24

Cost of tender specification Rs.2950/-(2500.00+18% GST)

E-bids are invited for Revenue Audit in various Sub-divisions of AVVNL

Office of Chief Accounts Officer (IA),

Ajmer Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited (AVVNL), Vidyut Bhawan, Panchsheel Nagar, Makarwali Road, Ajmer- 305 004

Contact Person: Senior Accounts Officer (IA-Corp.)
Telephone: 0145 – 2644514 / 2644508 / 94133 46436
E mail: sraoiacorp.avvnl@gmail.com

85

AJMER VIDYUT VITRAN NIGAM LIMITED

Chief Accounts Officer (IA)

Notice Inviting Tender TENDER SPECIFICATION NO. TN RA – 01/2023-24

E-bids are invited for Revenue Audit in various Sub-divisions of AVVNL

Ajmer Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited (AVVNL) invites bids through E-Tender system on website www.eproc.rajasthan.gov.in from Chartered Accountants Firms/Cost & Management Accountants Firms (Bidder Category-A), Registered Society formed by the Retired Officers/Officials of Discoms working in Rajasthan or erstwhile RSEB as well as registered Society of Retired officers/officials of Accountant General (IPAI) (Bidder Category-B), Individual retired officers/officials from Rajasthan Discoms having experience of atleast 5 years working in a Revenue/O&M Subdivision(s), Internal Audit, and/or in Revenue Section of any other office (Bidder Category-C) to conduct the Revenue Audit in 205 Sub- divisions under 12 O&M circles of 11 districts of Rajasthan, namely Ajmer, Bhilwara, Nagaur, Udaipur, Chittorgarh, Rajsamand, Banswara, Dungarpur, Pratapgarh, Jhunjhunu and Sikar. The contract period for conducting Revenue Audit shall initially for a period of Two Years, which may be extended further for 3 more Months at a time at the discretion of Ajmer Discom. Offer Bids may be submitted up to 2.00 P.M. on dated 23.06,2023.

Cost of Tender Specification Document (Non Refundable)	Rs 2950/- (2500.00+18% GST) (Rs Two Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty only)	
e-Tender Processing Fee (non-refundable)	Rs 2500/- (Rs. Two Thousand Five Hundred only)	
Estimated Cost	Rs. 5.50 Crores (Rupees Five Crore Fifty Lac only) for Ajmer Discom as a whole for two years	
Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) / Bid Security	Rs 75,000/- for Each Bidder (Rupees Seventy Five Thousand Only)	
Publishing Date/Time	25/05/2023, 11:00 AM	
Downloading of tender document	From 25/05/2023, 11:00 AM onwards at https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in and www.energy.rajasthan.gov.in/avvnl	
End of tender downloading Date/Time	23/06/2023, 02:00 PM	
Bid submission Start Date/Time & Place of submission of bid	From 25/05/2023, 11:00 AM onwards at https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in www.energy.rajasthan.gov.in/avvnl	
Bid submission Last Date/ Time	23/06/2023, 02:00 PM	
Submission of Banker's Cheque/ Demand Draft /online payment confirmation for cost of tender specification document, e-Tender processing Fee and EMD/ Bid Security.	23/06/2023, Up to 02:00 PM in the Office of the Chief Accounts Officer (IA), AVVNL, Vidyut Bhawan, Panchsheel Nagar, Makarwali Road, Ajmer- 305 004	
Date, Time and Place of Opening of Technical bid	28/06/2023, 02:00 PM at https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in	
Date, Time and Place of Opening of Financial bid	To be intimated separately to the qualified bidders	
Validity	120 days from the next date of opening of technical bid or 90 days from the next date of opening of financial bid whichever is later.	



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section I: INSTRUCTIONS TO THE BIDDERS	4
Section II: QUALIFYING REQUIREMENTS	14
Section III: SCOPE OF WORK	16
Section IV: PRICE SCHEDULE (BOQ)	
Section V: GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	
Section VI: SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	
Section VII: FORMS AND ANNEXURES	
Annexure I – Covering Letter	
Annexure I (A) - General Profile of the Bidder	38
Annexure I (B) — Personal Capabilities	
Annexure II - Technical & Commercial Deviation from the specifications	41
Annexure III - The Power of Attorney in favour of Authorized Signatory	42
Annexure IV – Form B - Declaration by the Bidder	43
Annexure V - Circle Wise List of Subdivisions	44
Annexure VI – Guidelines for making online payments	
Formats of Internal Audit Report as per Internal Audit Manual	51



AJMER VIDYUT VITRAN NIGAM LIMITED

Section I: INSTRUCTIONS TO THE BIDDERS

- The tender/ bid shall only be submitted through online tendering system at <u>www.eproc.rajasthan.gov.in</u>. The Bidder can download the tender document i.e., TN RA - 01/2023-24 from http://energy.rajasthan.gov.in/avvnl, https://www.eproc. rajasthan.gov.in and http://sppp.rajasthan.gov.in.
- 2. Bidders who wish to participate in this tender will have to register on http://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in (Bidders registered on eproc.rajasthan.gov.in prior to 30.09.2011 needs to register again). As per Information Technology Act-2000, to participate in online tenders, Bidders will have to procure Digital Signature Certificate (Type II or Type III), utilising the same they can sign their electronic bids. Bidders can procure the same from any CCA approved certifying agency i.e., TCS, Safecrypt, Ncode etc. or they may contact e-Procurement Cell, Department of IT & C, Government of Rajasthan for future assistance. Bidders who already have a valid Digital Certificate need not to procure a new Digital Certificate. In case of any query/assistance regarding submission of bid, the Bidders may contact to the followings:-

Contact No. 0141 - 4022688 (Help desk of RISL - 10.00 AM to 6.00 PM on all working days)

E-mail: eproc@rajasthan.gov.in

Address: e-Procurement Cell, RISL, Yojana Bhawan, Tilak Marg, C-Scheme, Jaipur.

- Bidders should go through the website https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in and go through
 the link "Help For Contractors", "Information About DSC", "FAQ" and "Bidders
 Manual Kit" and BID DETAILS to know the process for submitting the electronic bids
 at the website.
- 4. 'Instructions to the Bidders' and other terms and conditions of this tender pertaining to the bidding process generally follow the guidelines of e-tendering system of the government of Rajasthan, available at URL http://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in. However, wherever there is any anomaly between the conditions referred to in this bid document and the GoR e-tendering system, the later shall be final.
- Period of Engagement: The contract period for engagement / empanelment for conducting Revenue Audit shall initially be for a period of Two Years, which can be extended further for 3 (Three) Months at a time at the discretion of Ajmer Discom on the same rates and terms & conditions.
- All the communication/ correspondence including the bid document (Technical and Financial Bid) should be signed digitally and stamped on each page by the designated authorized representative of the bidder.
- Eligible Bidders: The bidder would be evaluated on the basis of Qualifying criteria set out in Section –II of the bid document, and the bidders found qualified shall only be considered for empanelment. However, empanelment does not bind AVVNL to allot the work

- Subcontracting: The successful bidder shall not be permitted to sub-contract any part of its obligations under the Contract with the AVVNL.
- Joint venture, Consortium or Association: The formation of consortium or Joint venture is not allowed, the bids submitted by a joint venture or consortium shall be summarily rejected.
- Corrigendum: Any corrigendum issued shall form part of the Bid Document and shall be issued on the e-procurement website https://www.eproc.rajasthan.gov.in, http://energy.rajasthan.gov.in/avvnl and http://sppp.rajasthan.gov.in

11. Preparation Of Bidding Documents:-

- Every Bidder, participating in the bidding process will be required to furnish the Earnest Money Deposit (EMD)/Bid Security as specified in this bidding document.
- b) The Bidder shall furnish Earnest Money/Bid Security of Rs. 75,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five thousand only) through Bank Draft/Banker's Cheque/Online payment confirmation as specified in this bidding document.
- c) The Bid EMD/ Bid Security shall be submitted/deposited in favour of Sr. Accounts Officer (EA & Cash), AVVNL, Ajmer payable at Ajmer, Rajasthan and A-9 receipt of the same shall be obtained.
- d) Scanned copy of the A-9 receipt for bid security shall be enclosed with the online submission of bid upto the date & time specified for submission of bid.
- e) Any bid not accompanied with the scanned copy of the A-9 receipt against deposition of earnest money upto the date & time specified for submission of the same, shall be rejected.
- f) The EMD/ Bid Security of unsuccessful bidders will be returned as promptly as possible, on producing the original A-9 receipt after the tender has been decided.
- g) The EMD/ Bid Security of the successful Bidder will be retained as Security Deposit.
- h) Request for adjustments/proposals for acceptance of Earnest Money deposit/ Bid Security, if any, already lying with the AVVNL in connection with some other bids/orders shall not be entertained.
- No interest shall be payable on the amount of EMD/ Bid Security.
- The EMD/ Bid Security taken from a bidder shall be forfeited when the bidder withdraws or modifies its bid after opening of bids.

12. Cost of tender document and e-tender processing fees:

a) The bidders can download the bid document https://www.eproc.rajasthan.gov.in. The Cost of tender/bidding document (including applicable GST) Rs. 2,950/- (Rs. Two Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty only) (non-refundable), shall be deposited through Demand Draft/ Banker's Cheque/Online modes payable to the Sr. Accounts Officer (EA & Cash), AVVNL, Ajmer and A-9 receipt for the same shall be obtained. The bidder shall also deposit e-tender processing fee amounting to Rs. 1,180/- (Rs. One thousand one hundred eighty only) (non-refundable), through either online modes or through Demand Draft/Banker's Cheque in favour of M.D. RISL payable at Jaipur, which will be submitted to AO (Cash) and obtain acknowledgement receipt for the same. Scanned copies of the A-9 receipt for tender document and E-Tender processing fee shall be enclosed with the submission of bid online whereas original DDs/ Banker's cheque shall be furnished to the Chief Accounts Officer (IA) in separate envelopes up to the date & time specified for the submission of bid. The Sr. AO (EA & Cash), AVVNL, Ajmer will deposit the Tender Processing Fee to the M,D., RISL payable at Jaipur.

- b) Any bid not accompanied with the scanned copies of the A-9 receipt against deposition of Cost of Tender Specification and E-Tender Processing fee up to the date & time specified for submission of the same, shall be rejected.
- c) The bidder who wish to make online payment please refer guidelines at Annexure -VI.

13. Submission And Opening Of Bids:-

a) Cost Of Bidding

The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of his Bid. The tendering authority shall not be responsible or liable for any costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

b) Language Of Bids

- The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to this Bid shall be exchanged and considered by the Bidder and the tendering authority in English Language only.
- Supporting documents and printed literatures comprising part of the Bid may however be provided in English/ Hindi language.

c) Submission Of Proposals

The Bidder shall submit their bid only in electronic format at https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in. The bid should be digitally signed and stamped on each page by a responsible and authorized person.

14. Documents Comprising the Bid

Bids are to be submitted in two parts:-

a) Part-I (Technical part of bid, to be filed in .pdf format):-

This shall contain the following:-

- i. Scanned copy of A-9 receipt for EMD/Bid Security deposition,
- ii. Scanned copy of A-9 receipt towards e-Tender Processing Fees,
- Scanned copy of A-9 receipt on account of deposition of the cost of tender document,
- iv. Technical Bid offer includes covering letter on firm's/Society's letter head alongwith related documents & formats as specified under Section-II & VII of this tender document.
- v. Other Documents/ certificates about bidder's competence, financial strength, details of experience in accordance with the QR as per Section-II specified so that the AVVNL may be able to examine whether the offer submitted is technically acceptable and also confirm to our commercial terms and conditions or not.

b) Part-II (Financial/ Price bid/ BOQ, to be filed in .xls format):-

- This shall contain the financial offer for carrying out the scope of work.
 The financial offer must be submitted in excel file of BOQ in the format as specified under Section-IV "Price Schedule" of this tender document.
- ii. The price bid shall only be opened after examination of Technical Bid as per requirement stipulated in this specification and being satisfied about the fulfillment of the qualifying criteria. Price bid of only successful and qualified bidders shall only be opened. The date of opening of the price Bids shall be intimated to successful bidders, after evaluation of technical bid (Part-I).
- c) If required, AVVNL may ask any bidder to furnish original copy of any documents or copy thereof duly attested by the Notary as the case may be for physical verification on short notice of three days.

Filling Of Bids

- a) The bid shall be submitted online in the electronic formats attached here to and all blanks in the tender and the schedule to the specification shall be duly filled in. The completed forms, schedule(s) shall be considered as part of the contract documents in case of the successful bidder.
- b) No alteration shall be permitted to the formats and schedules enclosed with this tender specification and the Bidder must entirely comply with the specification.
- c) The tender and all accompanying documents shall be in English/ Hindi Language and shall be signed digitally by a responsible and authorized person. The name, designation and authority of the signatory shall be stated in the tender. For any accompanying/supporting document supplied in language other than the specified, translated document of the same shall also be provided; otherwise, the document shall to be deemed as null and void.
- d) The bid shall be accompanied with the Power of Attorney (PoA) duly issued in the favour of authorized signatory of the bid on the Non-Judicial Stamp Paper of Rajasthan having value of Rs. 100/- duly notarized.
- e) The bidder must quote the prices strictly in the manner as indicated herein, failing which the bid shall be liable for rejection. These must not contain any additions, alterations or corrections and any other marking which leave any room for doubt.
- f) The AVVNL will not be responsible to accept any cost involved in the preparation or submission of bids.
- g) Any printed conditions of service on the bid shall not be accepted by the AVVNL.
- All bids and accompanying documents shall be addressed to the Chief Accounts Officer (IA), AVVNL, Vidyut Bhawan, Panchsheel Nagar, Makarwali Road, Ajmer-305004.
- The tenders/quotations given in the form other than the form prescribed shall not be considered.
- j) The price quoted shall be FIRM during the entire currency of the contract including the extended one, if any.

16. Bid Prices

- a) All the prices should be quoted in Indian Rupees (INR) only.
- b) The prices quoted in BOQ.xls should be inclusive of all the applicable taxes and other government levies, including goods and service tax if any applicable at the time of opening of Technical Bid.
- c) The bidder shall furnish break-up of the quoted price in financial offer according to the Section IV, indicating amount of goods and service tax clearly, as per the prevailing rates on the bid date. Any statutory variation due to imposition of new tax or any increase in existing taxes by the government subsequently during the currency of the contract shall be on the part of the AVVNL. Similarly, any waiver or reduction in the existing taxes shall also be passable to the AVVNL.

Period Of Validity Of Bids

- a) The submission of any bid connected with these documents and specification shall constitute an agreement that the Bidder shall have no cause of action or claim, against the AVVNL for rejection of its bid. The AVVNL shall always be at liberty to reject or accept any bid or bids at its sole discretion and any such action will not be called into question and the Bidder shall have no claim in that regard against the AVVNL.
- b) The bids shall be valid for a minimum period of 120 (One hundred twenty) days from the date of opening of Technical part of bid or 90 (Ninety) days from the date of opening of Price bid whichever is later. Bids mentioning a shorter validity period other than specified are likely to be summarily rejected.
- AVVNL may ask for extension in validity period. The Bidder will be at liberty to accept it unconditionally or not.

18. Alternative Bids

Alternative bids shall not be considered.

Signing Of The Bid

- a) The bidding document shall be digitally signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the bidder, in token of full commitment and acceptance of all the terms and conditions of the bidding document. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the bidding document and shall be attached to the bid.
- b) Bid by a partnership firm/LLP must be furnished with full names of authorized partner followed by the signature(s) and designation (s) of the authorized partner(s).
- c) Bids by Society must be signed with the legal name of the society by the President, Managing Director or by the Secretary or other person or persons authorized to sign the bid on behalf of such society.
- d) Bids not conforming to the above requirements of signing shall be disqualified.

Amendment/ Corrigendum/ Addendum in Bid Document And Deadline For Submission Of Bid

- a) Bids must be submitted online by the bidders on the website https://www.eproc.rajasthan.gov.in and earlier than the date and time specified in the NIT.
- b) At any time prior to the Bid Due Date, the Authority may for any reason, whether on its own initiative or as a result of a response to a query received, modify the Bid Document/ extend Bid Due Date by issuing "Amendment/ Corrigendum/ Addendum".
- c) The Amendment/ Corrigendum/ Addendum shall be published on http://energy.rajasthan.gov.in/avvnl, https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in and http://sppp.rajasthan.gov.in. Each such Amendment/ Corrigendum/ Addendum shall become part of the Bid Document.
- d) Change in date of submission and opening of bids if any shall also be placed on the AVVNL website immediately. However, if the modifications in bidding document, specifications of service are substantial, fresh publication of original bid inquiry may also be issued.
- e) The AVVNL on its discretion, reserves right to extend the deadline for the submission of bids.

21. Receipt Of Tenders/ Bids

- a) Access to the bids is strictly restricted and will be provided only to the concerned officers of AVVNL doing the evaluation.
- b) Bids received by modes other than submission on https://www.eproc.rajasthan.gov.in website shall not be considered.

22. Withdrawal, Substitution And Modification Of Bids

A Bidder may substitute or modify its bid after it has been submitted but prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids as per the e-tendering process, but bidder cannot withdraw his bid after submitting it once.

23. Bid Opening

- a) The designated Committee will perform the bid opening.
- b) The tendering authority shall conduct the bid opening at the address, date and time specified in the NIT.
- c) All the bids received up to the specified time and date in response by all the bidders shall be opened by the members of the designated Committee after entering their corresponding credentials (login id and digital signatures) in the website https://www.eproc.rajasthan.gov.in at the specified place, date and time.
- d) No bid shall be rejected at bid opening except for alternative bids, bids not accompanied with the required evidences regarding deposition of cost of tender documents, EMD/Bid Security, and e-tender processing fees.
- e) The Tendering authority shall prepare a record of the bid opening that shall include name of the bidder, the bid price and the presence or absence of Tender fee, EMD/Bid Security.
- f) Only the Part-I containing "Technical Bid" shall be opened first. The Part-II containing "Financial Bid" shall be kept intact and shall be opened later on the specified date and time which shall be intimated to the bidders who qualify in the evaluation of technical bids.

24. Evaluation Of Bids

 To evaluate a bid, the tendering authority shall use all the criteria and methodologies as prescribed in this bidding document.

b) Evaluation Of Technical Bids

- The initial technical evaluation shall be completed by the designated Committee as early as possible after opening of technical bids.
- After approval of the technical evaluation by tendering authority, the firms/Societies which qualified in the technical evaluation shall be informed in writing through e-proc about the date, time and place of opening of their financial bids.
- For the firms/Societies which could not qualify in technical evaluation, EMD/Bid Security shall be refunded after completion of the bidding process and award of contract.
- iv. The Tendering Authority will carry out a detailed evaluation of the bids as per criteria prescribed under Qualifying Criteria mentioned in the bidding and on the basis of documents enclosed with the technical bid and the bidders meeting the Prescribed Qualifying Requirements shall only be considered as technically qualified and thereof for opening of their price bids.
- v. In order to determine whether the bidders are qualified and whether the technical aspects are substantially responsive to the requirements set forth in the bidding documents, the Tendering Authority will examine the information supplied by the Bidders and the decision of the AVVNL shall be final and binding.

c) Evaluation Of Financial Bids

- The financial bids of bidders who qualified in technical evaluation shall be opened at the notified time, date and place by the members of the designated Committee.
- Conditional bids shall be liable to be summarily rejected.
- iii. The offers shall be evaluated on L1 basis and the technically qualified bidder quoting the lowest price shall be considered as L1 bidder, bidder quoting price next higher to the L1 bidder's price shall be considered as L2 bidder and so on.
- It shall be ensured that the price offered for sanction is reasonable and justifiable looking to the prevailing market rates of the services required to be procured.
- Provided that the Financial bid is substantially responsive, the competent Committee shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis: -
 - a. If there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and

b. If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to point "a" above.

Note: If the bidder quotes zero or null value against any of the item(s) in "Total Amount" column of the financial offer i.e. "BOQ" Section-IV, the same offer shall be rejected.

25. Negotiations

- a) As a general rule, negotiations after opening of bids would be discouraged. However, negotiations may be undertaken in exceptional circumstances, as when the quoted rates have wide variations and are much higher than the market rates prevailing at the time of opening of bids.
- b) Negotiations shall not make original offer of the bidder ineffective.
- c) Negotiations shall be conducted with the L1 bidder only and after giving an advance intimation in writing of 7 days for holding negotiations. In case of urgency the Bid Evaluation Committee may reduce the notice period for negotiations, after recording reasons in writing provided the bidder receives the information regarding holding negotiations.
- d) All bidders including L-1 will be arranged in the ascending order of their original financial bids. The Negotiated rates as accepted by the L1 bidder will be offered to other all qualified bidders whose financial bids have been opened. Bidders (including L-1), arranged in the ascending order of their original financial bids, who have accepted the negotiated rates, shall be considered for allotment of work.
- e) In case the lowest bidder does not reduce his rates in response to negotiations or the rates so reduced are still considered to be higher, the Bid Evaluation Committee may decide to make a written counter offer to L-1 first and afterwards the same counter offer will be given to all the remaining qualified bidders whose financial bids have been opened.

26. Rejection of bids:

The bid may be considered as rejected/nonresponsive on account of any of the followings:-

- a) Any action on the part of the bidder to revise the rates/prices and modification in technical or commercial substance of original offer subsequent to opening of tender.
- b) Submission of any supplementary information unless & otherwise asked for by the bidder after opening of the Bid may result in rejection of the Bid.
- c) The AVVNL reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to cancel the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to award of contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected bidder or bidders or any obligation to inform the affected bidder or bidders of the grounds for the AVVNL's action.
- d) In case of bidder not furnishing the desired information including all annexures and forms duly filled in the desired format the bid/offer may be rejected. Incomplete bid in any respect or obscure is liable for rejection.

- e) In case of bidder not adhering to the format of financial offer given with this document the bid/ offer may be rejected.
- f) In case of any foot note or explanatory statement in the financial offer the bid/offer may be rejected.
- g) In case of financial offer comprising any supplementary statement or discount or any condition the bid /offer may be rejected.
- h) In case, the bidder quotes zero or null value against any of the item(s) in "Total Amount" column of the financial offer i.e. "BOQ", the same offer shall be rejected.

27. Preliminary Examination And Evaluation

- a) AVVNL shall examine the bids to determine whether they are complete, free from computational errors, required cost and fees have been furnished or not and whether the documents furnished are properly signed and the bids submitted are generally in order.
- b) Prior to the detailed evaluation, the AVVNL will determine the prima facie responsiveness of each bid against the bidding document.
- c) For the purpose of above, a prima facie responsive bid is one which conforms to all the terms and conditions of the bidding document without material deviations, reservations and omissions as per Rule 59 of RTPP Rules-2013.
- d) A bid determined as not responsive will be rejected and shall not be treated responsive subsequently by correction of the non conformity by the bidder.

28. Award Of Contract

Notification of award of contract will be made in writing to the successful bidders.

Signing Of Agreement

On receipt of Letter of award/Work Order from AVVNL the successful bidder shall enter into an agreement as provided in clause No. 7 of STC.

30. General

- a) The cost of specification will not be refunded under any circumstances.
- b) The bidder shall treat the details of the specification and other Bid documents as private and confidential and shall not reproduce without the written authorization of AVVNL
- c) AVVNL shall not bind itself to accept the lowest or any bid or any part of the bid and shall not assign any reason(s) for the rejection of any bid or a part thereof.
- d) The fact of submission of bid to AVVNL shall be deemed to constitute an agreement between the bidder and AVVNL whereby such bid shall remain open for acceptance by the AVVNL and Bidder shall not have option to withdraw its offer, impair or derogate the same. If the Bidder is notified during the period of validity of bid that its bid is accepted by the AVVNL the bidder shall be bound by the terms of agreement constituted by its bid and such acceptance thereof by the AVVNL until formal contract of the same bid has been executed between the bidder and the AVVNL in replacement of such agreement.

- e) The successful bidder will have to execute the contract agreement towards proper fulfillment of the contract. In case of ambiguous or contradictory terms and conditions mentioned in the bid, interpretations as may be advantageous to AVVNL may be taken, if satisfactory clarification is not furnished within the prescribed period.
- f) AVVNL will not be responsible for any cost or expenses incurred by the bidder in connection with preparation or submission of bids.
- g) Telex, Telegraphic, Fax bids or bid submitted in hard copy shall not be accepted.
- h) AVVNL reserves the right to:
 - Amend the scope of the proposed contract.
 - ii. Reject or accept any bid.
 - Cancel the bid process and reject all applications.
 - iv. Change the area.
 - v. Change the period of contract
 - vi. Increase or decrease the No of Subdivisions to be audited

AVVNL shall neither be liable for any action nor be under any obligation to inform the bidders of the grounds for any of the above actions.



Section II : QUALIFYING REQUIREMENTS <u>QUALIFICATION CRITERION</u>

- Bids for carrying out revenue audit of the sub-divisions as per annexure is invited from the following eligible prospective bidders:
 - A. Category-A: Reputed firms of Charted Accountants (CA), Cost Accountant (CWA). The firm should be registered with the respective Institute of Charted Accountant of India or the Institute of Cost & Works Accountants of India. CA and CWA firms must be empanelled with the CAG and/or RBI for carrying out statutory audit. The bidder must be in existence for a minimum period of 3 years as on 1 April, 2023 and must have at least one FCA/FCMA. Besides the above primary qualification requirement, the firm should score at least 60 percent marks on the evaluation matrix prescribed and given below:

Evaluation Matrix for Technical Qualification for Chartered Accountants / Cost

		ts Firms as or	A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH		
S.No.	Conditions	Weights	Maximum Weights/ Marks for the conditions	Supporting Document	
1	No. of Proprietor / Partner			-Copy of Latest Partnership Deed or Firm Registration	
	Up to 5	10		Certificate/Firm Card issued	
	6 and above	15	15	by ICAI/ICMAI	
2	No. of FCA/FCMA			-Copy of Fellowship	
	1-3	5		Certificate issued by	
	Above 3	15	15	ICAI/ICMAI	
3	Office in Rajasthan	1000	J. 110	-Any supporting document	
	Branch Office	5	5	rang supporting declariest	
	Head/Registered Office	10	10		
4	Year of existence			-Any supporting docume issued by ICAI / ICMAI	
	3 & upto 5 years	5			
	More than 5 years & upto 10 years	10			
335	More than 10 years	15	15		
5	No. of articles employed with the firm	1 mark per article upto max, 5	5	-Any supporting document issued by ICAI / ICMAI	
6	Average turnover in last 3 F.Y.			Copy of audited/ certified financial statements	
	Upto Rs. 15 lacs	5		Common sections with the co	
	Above Rs. 15 lacs	10	10		
7	Exposure of The Firms as Internal auditor In electricity/ Power sector companies under central/other state Govt. and in Erstwhile RSEB/Discoms. *	(2 marks per unit upto maximum 30marks)**	30	-Copy of Work Order and -Work Completion Certificate or No dues issued by concerned department	

Firm securing 60 % & above marks will only be considered as technically qualified for empanelment.



- *Copy of work order & letter regarding satisfactory completion is to be enclosed in support of experience/exposure.
- **Two marks will be given of one unit irrespective of one year audit or multiple years' audit.

Note:-

- Any tie between two applicants regarding marks obtained shall be decided by giving preference to applicant, having highest No. of Partners and if tie still exist then further on the basis of highest year of existence, average turnover (as above) respectively.
- All Relevant documentary proof in respect of above, needs to be submitted alongwith the request. Without sufficient documentary proof about qualifying criterion, the request is likely to be rejected.
- B. Category-B: Registered Forum/Society/Association of the retired personnel of power sector companies/erstwhile RSEB/ Accountant General (IAPAI). The bidder must have at least one AAO-I or higher rank officer.
- C. Category C:- Retired officers/officials of Rajasthan Discoms having experience of at least 5 years working in a revenue/O&M sub-division(s), internal audit, and/or in revenue section of any other office may also participate in their individual capacity in the bidding. Bidder must be the rank of AAO-II and above.
- D. Information related to the aforementioned criterion alongwith covering letter (to be provided in Annexure-1) must be submitted alongwith the offer.
- E. Filling of All annexure/forms are mandatory. In absence of all annexures duly filled in, the bid will be treated as non-responsive and rejected.

Note: Audit Party is a team of 3 Qualified Persons (Atleast One Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant and Two articles/audit assistant in case of CA/CMA firms (Category-A) and atleast One Retired Higher Rank Officer or Retired AAO-II/Accountant/ Sr. Auditor and Two other members in case of Society of retired personnel from Discoms or erstwhile RSEB / Accountant General (IAPAI) having experience of Revenue / Audit) (Category-B & C)



Section III: SCOPE OF WORK

The Auditor will carry out the Revenue Audit of all LT & HT consumers (other than Large Industrial Power Consumers) of sub divisions, by deploying a team of 3 Qualified Persons (Atleast One Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant and Two articles/audit assistant in case of CA/CMA firms and atleast One Retired Higher Rank Officer or Retired AAO-II/Accountant/ Sr. Auditor and Two other members in case of Society of retired personnel from Discoms or erstwhile RSEB / Accountant General (IAPAI) having experience of Revenue / Audit).

From the Audit Team, reported at the time of starting of Revenue Audit of allotted subdivision, firm/society cannot replace any of them during the entire audit period without taking approval from the Nigam. No allowances or residential facility of any kind will be provided to auditor for conduct of Revenue Audit.

The audit team shall prepare a statement of under assessment of the audited consumers in triplicate. One copy of the statement of undercharges shall be handed over to the concerned AEN / ARO of the sub division on fortnightly basis for approval/ acceptance and finalization for serving notices and debiting the same in the consumer ledger account.

The Revenue Audit shall have to be carried out as per Audit Manual prepared by the Batli Boi & Co. and amendments/circulars/orders/instructions issued by Nigam from time to time. In case of any confusion or clarification the respective Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/AO (IA) may be contacted.

To prepare the observation including undercharges, mainly the following records are to be checked and audited:

- Checking of Physical Cash Balances.
- Checking record of Cash Section viz. Form A-9, PCCB/Scroll for NEFT/RTGS transactions and PCB. Any lapses noticed, shall be intimated alongwith name of defaulters & supporting documents duly certified/attested or a certificate shall be given regarding no irregularities are observed.
- Checking of timely remittences of money collected and reconciliation with Bank Statement (A-45 register and A-26 register) & supporting documents duly certified/attested or a certificate shall be given regarding no irregularities are observed.
- Checking of output 6-A, B & C, payment wise summary/agency wise details with stubs / scrolls and to report suspecious cases of embezzlement/financial irregularities alongwith defaulter and supporting documents.
- Reconciliation of amount received through PCCB and posted against consumer A/c as per MIS. Reconcile CB-9 with PCB.
- Checking of debit raised or not in cases of dishonoured cheques alongwith LPS and bank charges & GST, if applicable.
- Whether cash collection is done by outside agencies, if yes intimate name of Kiosk (under e-mitra/CSC) and DeGS where receipts to consumers are issued by affixing rubber stamp in place of computerized receipt.



- Checking of consumer A/c in respect to all heads of energy bill including UC, WCC, Voltage Rebate/Meter Defective Rebate, Solar Rebate, Fixed Charges, prepaid meter billing and calculation mistake etc. and report discripancies accordingly (if any) irrespective of lapses at the level of subdivision or software etc.
- Checking of consumer ledger with binder &/ or other related records viz. SCO, MCO/TMCO, A-30, CC&AR etc.,
- Checking of CC&AR register for unathorized/irregular credits causing loss to the Nigam with MCO, DCO, RCO, MMR.
- Checking of deficiencies in input advice and output reports related to billing i.e.
 CB-4, CB-12 & CB-15 with 16 A, B, C output reports with cross verification from CC&AR.
- 12. Checking of left out outstanding and negative balances against the consumers, old outstanding if any left and not carry forwarded in consumers' bills and prepare memo accordingly (if action pending at subdivision level)
- 13. Detailed audit of mobile tower connections and ensuring correct billing thereof.
- 14. Ensuring 100% transfer of Master Data as well as outstanding from computerized billing to spot billing or one billing agency to another or transfer from one subdivision to another/newly created subdivision (if applicable).
- Checking of pendency/ billing/ compliance of DCO's, MCO's & RCO's and pendency of LR (Last Reading) in billing in case of meter change.
- 16. Checking of billing of temporary connections and recovery of assessment, if any.
- 17. Checking of debit raised/ average charged in case of stopped/ defective meters, theft, malpractices cases and other charges in view of compliance of A-30 Nigam's orders and arrange to propose debit in consumer's account.
- Correctness of billing in view of Nigam's TCOS, tariff and circulars/ orders issued from time to time.
- 19. Irregularities in the records of HT (other than large industrial power), MIP and SIP consumers ensuring that HT Binders and SIP Binders are duly filled regarding nature of supply, contract demand opted by consumer, ownership of transformer, CT/PT, LT/CT etc., Further, it must be made sure that all parameters of reading are recorded where trivector meter is installed and connected load having more than 25HP/ 18.65 KwH with special emphasis on Comm AJ 194/ 398/ 699.
- Checking of M.F. as per JIR of consumers who are being billed on power factor basis. Also Checking of billing of load extension/reduction.
- 21. Detailed audit of SIP, MIP & other category consumers having sanctioned/connected load 25 HP (18.65 KW) or above and whose MDI has exceeded above 50 KVA thrice in a financial year and under assessment thereof.
- Under charges for any irregularities noticed during audit period in case of a consumer will be made for whole period irrespective of audit period.
- 23. Checking of A-49 register in reference to pendency of SCOs for compliance, pendency of SCOs for billing, delay in issue of first bill and breach of priority in release of connections. The incompleteness of A-49 alongwith brief note mentioning the reason of actual delay on the part of JEN/ ARO/ CC Clerk.



- 24. Checking of VCR cases for assessment & logical conclusions thereof and identify the revenue of pending VCR. In case of VCRs of consumers, only such VCRs shall be included in pending VCRs against which amount of assessment has not been debited in the consumer account and give specific remarks that whether VCR pertains to Theft or Malpractice.
- Checking of register maintained for settlement of dues alongwith implementation of decisions.
- 26. Verification of pendency of all old SOSDs and pendency status of irregularities with specific compliance done by subdivision (if any) & abstract of previsious ICRs. Cases pending for debit is to be intimated to subdivision by letter with copy to the concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA) / AO (IA).
- 27. The amount charged to the consumer is to be got debited in their accounts through CC&AR number. The number & date of the same is to be recorded in SOSD sheet duly signed from AEN and ARO of the subdivision concerned.
- 28. Name of defaulters for not providing of record to conduct audit shall also be submitted alongwith details of correspondance made with subdivision.
- Short reasons should not be mentioned in the column "brief reasons of irregularities" of SOSDs i.e. LU, MD etc.
- Tenure of officers/officials posted in subdivision duly signed by AEN/ARO shall be provided and full name of officers/officials alongwith designation should be mentioned.
- Checking of service connection files for under estimations, connections released on undertaking in PHED category, breach of priority etc.
- 32. Pointing out the cases of low/zero consumption since long time.
- 33. Detailed audit of agriculture consumer- load, Multiplying factor, final reading in TMCO, biling of defective period as per TCOS, wrong application of Tariff regarding block supply, round the clock supply.
- Checking of consumer security and meter security and its updation in consumer ledger/data base.
- 35. Any other works related to revenue audit asigned by the management.



Section IV: PRICE SCHEDULE (BOQ)

The Chief Accounts Officer (IA), Ajmer Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited Vidyut Bhawan, Panchsheel Nagar, Makarwali Road, Ajmer- 305 004

I/We M/s	hereby offer the following rates
(per consumer per Financial Year- inclusive of all taxes	
through e-procurement website of GoR for conducting work – section III) in all the 205 Sub-divisions under I Rajasthan, namely Ajmer, Bhilwara, Nagaur, Udaipur, Cl Dungarpur, Pratapgarh, Jhunjhunu and Sikar.	Revenue Audit (as per scope of 2 O&M circles of 11 districts of

Sr. No	Particulars	Rate per consumer per financial year (inclusive of all taxes and duties)	Total
1	Revenue audit of sub-divisions (including all expenses e.g. travelling expenses, lodging/ boarding etc. to be incurred during audit as well as all Central and State Government Taxes/Duties including GST)		

We confirm that we have thoroughly & carefully read and fully understood all the terms and conditions of the Bid Documents and only after that have quoted the above workable/viable price. We agree to hold this price for the empanelment for conducting Revenue Audit in various Subdivisions of AVVNL for period of Two years that can be extended for further period for 3 more Months at a time at the sole discretion of Ajmer Discom on the same rate and other terms & conditions.

Name:

Designation:

Signature:

Firm /Society Name & Seal:



Section V: GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

The General Terms & Conditions of the proposal/contract shall prevail and shall be binding on the Bidder and any change or variation expressed or impressed howsoever made shall be inoperative. The Bidder shall be deemed to have fully informed itself and to have specific knowledge of the provisions under terms & conditions of these specifications mentioned hereunder:-

1. Definition of Terms :-

In constructing these general conditions and the annexed specifications, the following words shall have the meaning herein assigned to them unless there is anything in the subject of context inconsistent with such construction.

- a) The "AVVNL" mean the "Ajmer Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited" interchangeably also referred to as Ajmer Discom in these bidding documents, represented by the Managing Director and shall include their legal personal representative, successors and assignees. The "Owner" or "Nigam" shall mean "AVVNL".
- b) The "Bid" shall mean the specification; specific condition annexed to the General Conditions, the contract schedule and the annexure thereto (if any).
- c) The "Bidder" shall mean the elegible prospective bidders as defined under Section II – "Qualification Requirement" of this bidding document, who can participate in the bidding process and submitted the bid in response to the said tender.
- d) The "Qualified Bidder" shall mean whose application/bid has been accepted by the Nigam against proposal and shall include the Bidder heirs, legal representatives, successors and assignees, approved by the Nigam.
- e) The "Chairman" shall mean the Chairman DISCOMS, Jaipur
- f) The "Managing Director" shall mean the Managing Director, AVVNL, Ajmer.
- g) "Works" mean and include the work or works offered through this bidding document and to be done/ carried out by the Bidder under the contract.
- h) The "Contract" means the Agreement entered into between the Successful bidder and the AVVNL together with the Contract Documents referred to therein, including all attachments, appendices and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
- i) The "Contract Documents" shall mean the following documents listed, including any amendments thereto be read and construed as part of this Agreement, viz.,:
 - Notice Inviting Tender (NIT)
 - ii. Instructions to Bidder
 - iii. Letter of Intent and its acknowledgement
 - iv. Security Deposit
 - v. Work Order
 - vi. General Terms & Conditions of Contract
 - vii. Special Terms & Conditions of Contract
 - viii. Specifications, Schedules and Annexures

85

- Addenda that may hereafter be issued by the Nigam to the Bidder in the form of letter and covering letters of bid as agreed between the Bidder and the Nigam.
- j) The word "Successful Bidder" shall mean selection of the Bidder after evaluation of bid on Professional qualification; commercial /financial standing and technical qualification basis who accepted negotiated price, if any, followed by entered a contract with the Nigam for conducting the work.
- The "Month" shall mean, English calendar month and week shall mean a period of 7 days.
- "Letter of Intent (LOI)" shall mean the Nigam's letter conveying its acceptance
 of the Bid for Proposal subject to such reservation(s) as may have been stated
 therein.
- m) The "Contract Rate" shall mean the rate which is to be derived from this tendering process per consumer per financial year (including all taxes and duty) is fix at which the Revenue Audit is to be carried out by the successful Bidder.
- n) "Work Order" shall mean the Nigam's letter which may be issued in the way of letter of intent containing detailed terms & conditions of the work and such other particulars which the Nigam may like to convey to the short listed Bidder pending execution of a formal written agreement.
- o) "Writing" shall include any manuscript typed, written or printed statement under or over signature or seal, as the case may be.
- p) Words importing "Person" shall include firms / societies,
- q) Words importing the singular only shall also include the plural and vice versa, where the context requires.
- r) Terms and expressions not herein defined shall have the same meaning as one assigned to them in the Indian Contract Act (Act IX of 1872) and falling that in the General Clause Act, 1897.
- s) The word "Empanelment" shall mean panel of successful bidders after evaluation.

2. Force Majeure:-

Any cause that is beyond the reasonable control of the Bidder or Nigam will be Force Majeure Condition. The cause of the Force Majeure condition will be taken into consideration only if the awardee within 15 days from the occurrence of such delay notifies. The Nigam shall verify the facts and grant such extension as the facts justify. For extension due to Force Majeure condition, the empanelled firm shall submit it's representation along with documentary evidence for scrutiny by the Nigam and decision of the Nigam in this regard shall be final and binding.

3. Subletting of Contract :-

The successful bidder shall not be allowed to sublet the awarded work partially or wholly otherwise the contract shall be cancelled and the firm/society shall be liable for debarment/blacklisting.



4. Suspension of Work :-

The Nigam shall not be liable to pay the Bidder any compensation whatsoever arising from suspension or for idle labour.

5. Governing Laws & Jurisdiction :-

The agreement shall be governed & followed by Indian Laws and Sub Laws. Only the competent court at Ajmer alone shall have exclusive court jurisdiction to deal with any matter arising out of or relating to the agreement or otherwise. All disputes, differences, questions, whatsoever arising between the Nigam and the Bidder shall be dealt with at Ajmer City only, and no court other than Court at Ajmer (Rajasthan) shall have jurisdiction.

6. Settlement of Disputes :-

In the event of any question, dispute, interpretation or difference whatsoever which may arise between the Nigam and the Bidder, the same shall be referred to the MD, Ajmer Discom and the mutual settlement so arrived at, shall be final and binding on both the parties.

Chief Accounts Officer (IA)



Section VI: SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

The Special Terms & Conditions of the bid for proposal/contract shall prevail and shall be binding on the Bidder and any change or variation expressed or impressed howsoever made shall be inoperative unless expressly agreed & sanctioned otherwise by the Nigam. The Bidder shall be deemed to have fully informed itself and to have specific knowledge of the provisions under terms & conditions of these specifications mentioned hereunder:-

1. General :-

The Chief Accounts Officer (IA), AVVNL, Ajmer on behalf of "Ajmer Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited" hereinafter interchangeably referred to "Nigam" or "Ajmer Discom" in these bidding documents, will receive online bids for Bid For Proposal for the subject work in accordance with the mentioned "Scope of Work", however any work if specifically not mentioned but reasonably implied for the successful implementation and optimal performance of the proposed work shall deemed to be inclusive and shall be an integral part of the "scope of work." The Bidder are very well supposed in their own interest to go through the specification, instructions, forms, terms and general information carefully and thoroughly which are available on Nigam website.

2. Delayed / Late bids/applications :-

The bid submitted after the time and date fixed for receipt of bid as set out in the tender document shall be rejected. The Nigam shall not assume any responsibility for any delay for online submission of any kind. No extension of time shall be granted in any case and the bid/application shall be rejected outrightly.

3. Acceptance / Rejection of bids/applications :-

The AVVNL would be at liberty to accept any bids/applications, in whole or part or reject any or all the bids/applications without assigning any reason(s) thereof.

4. Incomplete Applications and Deviations from commercial Terms and Conditions: -

Offers deviating from commercial terms & conditions like payment terms, Security Deposits, validity etc., are liable to be rejected outrightly unless exempted by the Nigam. Incomplete bid in any respect or obscure is liable for rejection.

5. Security Deposit and Performance Security :-

- a) The EMD/Bid Security of Bidder on whom the order has been placed, shall be retained as Security Deposit.
- b) The Nigam shall adjust the penalty imposed (if any) from the Security Deposit available with the Nigam as provided in clause 31 of STC.
- c) The value of Performance Security would be 10% of the work order value. The same shall be detained from each and every bill submitted after completion of the work. The Performance Security shall only be released on submitting a certificate regarding No Irregularities/Lapses/Left Out Undercharges/Cases of Audit conducted by the Firm/Society of their period are reported in the Interim/Audit Reports of succeeding years' Audit of the respective subdivision (OR) After a period of 3 months post the date of completion of the contractual period subject to the receipt of satisfactory performance report (i.e., No Dues

Certificate indicating that there is no claim(s) / penalty outstanding to be recovered against the firm) by concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA), whichever is earlier.

d) No interest shall be paid by the Nigam on either on Security Deposit or on Performance Security.

6. Award /Placement of work :-

- a) Only the Bidder fulfilling the Technical Qualification will be considered for opening of their respective price bid.
- b) The preference to qualified Bidder is solely arrived on lowest price quoted in tender on per consumer per year basis.
- In case of receipt of two or more Bidder's similar price quotation, the sequence will be determined by draw of lottery.
- d) On the basis of prices quoted by Bidders, the firms/societies will be listed in ascending order of price and the lowest quoted price as finalized by the Nigam after negotiation, if required, will be the final for allotment of all work orders to Bidders.

7. Signing of Contract and Completion of Formalities:-

On receipt of Letter of award/Work Order from AVVNL, the successful bidder shall enter into an agreement by signing required contract documents with Nigam at concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA), AVVNL on Rajasthan State Non-judicial stamp paper duly Notarized, bearing stamp duty as applicable (Currently @ 0.25% of value of Work Order plus Surcharge or Cess, as applicable). The Nigam shall not reimburse these costs. For all purposes, the contract shall be construed according to the Laws of India and subject to jurisdiction of AJMER Courts only.

a) This contract will be governed by the terms and conditions mentioned in General Conditions of Contract. In case the Terms & conditions incorporated in General Conditions of Contract differ/deviate from those incorporate in the Work Order, later shall prevail. However, if any, applicable Terms & Conditions of Contract have not been incorporated in the Work Order the respective /relevant Terms & conditions given in the General Conditions of Contract shall be applicable.

The Bidder shall execute contract document in the manner as detailed below:-

- Copy of the Bid document including scope of work signed on each page
- ii. GTC & STC duly signed
- iii. Instructions to Bidders duly signed
- iv. A NJS paper of applicable stamp duty duly signed as under:

NODATED
VODATED

All the above Contract documents shall be signed by an authorized person holding valid Power of Attorney. A copy of Power of Attorney (as mentioned



in Annexure III) in favour of person signing these documents duly notarized in original on NJS paper of Rs. 100 shall also be furnished.

b) Failure of the successful Bidder(s) to sign the contract within 15 days of intimation/issue of work order shall constitute sufficient grounds for annulment of the work awarded/ allotted. The AVVNL may, in such case, cancel the contract with the bidder and forfeit the EMD/Bid Security/Security Deposit as provided in clause 31 of STC, and shall be liable for blacklisting/debarment/severing of business relations as the case may be.

8. Rules & Regulations :-

The work/job shall be carried out as per the rules, regulations and other details as prevailing in the Nigam, which shall be made available to the Bidder. These rules and regulations may be modified by the Nigam from time to time and available on Nigam's website or provided otherwise or would be intimated to the Bidder for adhering to the same. The Bidder will also follow the labour regulations and the directions of Government and other authorities enforcing the regulations and comply with any other relevant legislation in force from time to time. For any consequences arising out of non compliance whatsoever in regard to all the prudent and applicable provisions of these acts, regulations etc., the Bidder shall be wholly responsible.

9. Disqualification :-

The AVVNL may, at its own sole discretion, and at any time during the evaluation process without any information, disqualify any Bidder, if the Bidder has:-

- Made misleading or false representations in the forms, statements and attachments submitted as proof of the eligibility requirements;
- Exhibited a record of poor performance such as abandoning work, not properly completing the contract, inordinately delaying completion, being involved in litigation or financial failure etc.;
- Submitted a proposal which is not accompanied by required documentation is non-responsive;
- d) Failed to provide clarifications related thereto, when sought;
- Submitted more than one proposal. This will cause disqualification of all the proposals submitted by such Bidder;
- f) Any action on the part of the Bidder after the last date of submission of bid to revise the rates / prices and modification in the substance of original bid, submission of any supplementary information unless and otherwise specifically asked for, at its own instance may result in rejection of the bid.

10. Period for Execution of Work :-

The auditor firm/society has to submit its audit program (alongwith Photo & ID proof of team members in tabular form) for a particular sub division within a period of 15 days from the date of allotment of audit work (Issue of work order) for approval of the concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA). The Audit Work(s) awarded has to be executed / completed within the stipulated period which would be calculated depending on the number of consumers to be audited @ 400 consumers per year, per working day of AVVNL (by an Audit Party consisting of

at least 3 personnel) or part thereof otherwise any delay shall attract recovery on account of delay following the clause stipulated hereinafter. The firm will obtain unique ID/Password through concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA) / AO (IA) to access the data of the subdivision for the purpose of audit. The auditor shall depute audit member to the concerned Zonal Sr. Accounts Officer (IA)/Accounts Officer (IA) at least once in each month during audit period of each office, depending on the workload and as desired by the Corporate / Zonal Office for reporting of work done by the auditor or to discuss the problems being faced.

11. Submission of Audit Report :-

The audit team shall prepare a statement of under assessment i.e. calculation / charging sheet of the audited consumers in triplicate. Two copies of the charging sheet shall be handed over along with letter time to time personally to the concerned AEN / ARO of the sub division duly acknowledged by the latter on fortnightly basis or on completion of bill group whichever is earlier for checking within 7 working days to approve/accept/finalization and ensure serving of 15 days notice to the respective consumers as per rules before debiting the same in the consumer ledger account. If firms/societies are failed to do so, whole responsibility for delay in finalization of report in this regard will be on their part and penalty for not submitting charging sheet timely or for submitting through email & in other soft form will attract penalty as per penalty clause No. 22.

In addition to above, it shall also be ensured to submit memos time to time in respect of pending/delay in compliance of the Service Connection Orders (SCOs), pending/delay in issuing 1st bill, pending VCRS of consumers/non consumers and other irregularities for obtaining comments/explanation of the AEN/ ARO within 7 days. If no explanation/comments to the memo are received within 7 days, the consolidated/final report be submitted accordingly.

It is also required to ensure acknowledgement regarding submission of memo etc. from AEN/ARO along with Receipt (RR) No. to avoid any complication in future.

The auditor is required to submit the final consolidated Audit Report of each office (subdivision) after discussion & duly agreed and signed by the AEN & ARO of audited unit within 15 days from the date of completion of audit. The Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA) will accept that report only after ensuring that total scope of work is attended by firm / society by due verification from the IAP(s). For example, in case there are 20,000 consumers in a sub-division to be audited and the work is awarded on 3rd of April, then the completion period shall be worked out as under:

- i. Commencement period of 15 days (from submitting Audit Programme): up to 18th April
- Execution period 20000/400 days per day : 50 working days, i.e up to 28th June, 2023
- Bidder has to submit the final audit report complete in all respect and to the entire satisfaction of the respective Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/AO (IA) up to 13th July, 2023.

 Failure to do so will attract recovery on account of delay in execution as per clause No. 22 stipulated hereinafter.

Thereafter, the final audit report should be submitted in three copies. Original report shall be handed over to concerned Unit Office & second copy to the concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA) alongwith one copy of calculation/charging sheets, third copy shall be retained by the auditors. One soft copy of final audit report shall also be submitted to the concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA).

The audit report will be accepted by Zonal Sr. AO (IA) / AO (IA) only if it is followed by Verification of pendency of SOSDs & pendency status of irregularities with specific compliance done by sub-division (if any) & proper abstract of previous ICRs.

All the audit findings and observations should be categorized / summarized by the Audit Party in the prescribed formats as under:

- a) Audit observations involving direct revenue loss to the Nigam in format IAR –
 1 (Section A)
- b) Audit observations relating to procedural deviations in format IAR 1 (Section B)
- c) Audit observations relating to management information in format IAR 1 (Section – C)
- d) Audit certificate in format IAR 1 (Section D)
- e) Detailed / supplementary information in support of the audit findings would also be prepared by the IAP in various prescribed formats IAR 1.1 to 1.41. Formats containing irregularities would invariably be followed by footnote that "the above lapses/shortcomings so detected are based on the record" duly signed by AEN/ARO also.
- f) All observations of the Audit Party which are not covered by various check points and reporting formats, but which are vital from the point of Nigam, should be noted on separate audit note sheets and must be enclosed with the report duly numbered and abstracted in format No. 1.42 which would be entered in a register by the concerned A.O. for watching compliance.
- g) Additional Formats are also required to be Annexed with the Audit Report.
- Financial/Serious irregularities noticed during audit will be reported along with name of defaulting officers/officials and certified/attested supporting documents.

12. Sample Test Checking :-

The Firm/Society will submit Audit Report in prescribed formats as per scope of work. The audit work done by the auditor (Firm/Society) shall be got verified by the Nigam auditors placed under jurisdiction of concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA) or otherwise after approval from CAO (IA) so as to ascertain the method of audit and correctness of undercharges so prepared.



Random sample test checking of minimum 10% consumers out of total consumers audited shall be carried out by the Nigam auditors. The Nigam Auditors shall also check all other parameters of scope of audit. The Nigam Auditors shall also examine thoroughly the additional formats attached with the Audit Report. (Annexure-D of this Bid Document related to CC&AR and A-10 / A-30). If the work of auditor (Firm/Society) will not found satisfactory in the sample test check then auditor will be directed to remove the observations so raised/ pointed out by the IAP, the auditor is required to recheck all the consumers audited before submission of revised audit report. In case of 10% or more irregularities/ lapses/ calculation errors/ tariff mistakes/ wrong cases / left out cases including financial irregularity found in cash, CC&AR & relating to reconciliation of 6ABC, 16ABC, Bank Statement etc. are detected in comparison to firms reporting then the firm will be directed to carry out Re-audit and submit revised report.

A certificate is required to be submitted from the concerned Assistant Engineer and Assistant Revenue Officer clearly stating that the proposed assessment sheets were checked and found correct as per the provisions of TCOS and applicable Tariff.

In the case of sample test check of Re-audit performed by IAP, if 5% or more irregularities (as mentioned above) are detected then work order shall be cancelled, the payment of the bill(s) raised shall not be made and the empanelment of the auditor shall be cancelled.

In case, if any firm/society will have any objection on sample test report then it shall submit its objections in writing alongwith all necessary documents and justifications to the concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA) within 15 days from the receipt of the sample test report, otherwise it will be presumed that firm has nothing to say. Any delay in this regard will not be tolerated at all.

13. Submission of Bills for Professional Fee :-

The Firm/Society shall submit the bill of professional fee after completion and submission of final and consolidated Audit Report for each subdivision in triplicate (three copies) alongwith a copy of related page of MIS or Consumer Certificate duly verified by the AEN / ARO regarding No. of consumers to the "Zonal Sr. Accounts Officer (IA)/ Accounts Officer (IA)/". The No. of consumers so verified, will be final for payment.

For this, firstly the firm/ society has to submit Audit Report to the Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA) concerned, who will then depute an Internal Audit Party (IAP) to conduct sample test check on the submitted Audit Report.

The firm/ society has to remove each and every observation, if any, raised/ pointed by the Internal Audit Party (IAP) on the various clauses of work order in their sample test check report. However, if the Internal Audit Party proposes re-audit then the firm/society has to conduct re-audit and submit Revised Audit Report again.

The report submitted after attending observations will be analyzed by the Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA) concerned who will ensure that whole scope of work is attended by the firm/society and only after getting satisfied, the report will be considered

final and accepted. Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA) concerned who after receiving satisfactory report through Nigam IAP shall arrange payment after necessary approval from the CAO (IA), AVVNL

14. Terms for Payment of Professional Fee :-

No advance Professional Fee shall be paid. The 90% of total professional fee of each bill shall be made generally within 45 days of satisfactory completion of Audit Work and submission of the detailed/consolidated Final Audit Report including pendency status of old ICRs and verification report of previous years' SOSDs after making desired corrections in the report by the auditor firm/society, as required by the Nigam Authorities and final acceptance of Audit Report for according approval from CAO (IA) as provided in submission of bill for professional fee.

In case of shortage of any document(s) / report(s) the bills shall not be processed. The TDS under Income Tax Act and GST Act shall be deducted as per applicable provisions.

The Goods and Service tax deducted at source shall be reimbursed after depositing and providing documentary proof of the same otherwise Goods and Service tax deducted at source will not be refunded/ returned.

Balance 10 % fee detained from each bill shall only be released on submitting a certificate regarding No Irregularities/Lapses/Left Out Undercharges/Cases of Audit conducted by the Firm/Society of their period are reported in the Interim/Audit Reports of succeeding years' Audit of the respective subdivision (OR) After a period of 3 months post the date of completion of the contractual period subject to the receipt of satisfactory performance report (i.e., No Dues Certificate indicating that there is no claim(s) / penalty outstanding to be recovered against the firm) by concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA)/ AO (IA), whichever is earlier.

However, if any cash embezzlement is pointed out during succeeding years' audit or any audit of that period 10% detained amount of Fee will not be released.

15. Compliance of Labour Legislation :-

The firm shall discharge its liability of employer/bidder in respect of personnel to be engaged for service, as set out in EPF and MP Act-1952, ESI Act -1948 (in ESI implemented area), Workmen's Compensation Act-1923 (in non ESI implemented area), Contract Labour (R&A) Act-1970, Payment of Wages Act-1936, Minimum Wages Act-1948 etc. The firm is required to get separate code under the provision of EPF & ESI Acts, if not already taken & deposit the employer's contribution alongwith employees' subscription and submit copies of challans at the time of claiming payment, as per rules, failing which an amount equivalent to employer's contribution and employees' subscription shall be deducted from its each bill and deposit with the concerned authorities. The firm shall be solely responsible for any consequences arising out of breach of any legislation.

16. Safety of Record :-

The documents and records relating to Revenue Audit Conducted shall be handed over to the Nigam in good condition from time to time as and when required by the Nigam in soft as well as hard copies as per "Scope of Work" and finally after completion of the work. The original records taken from any of the office of the Nigam shall be kept safe and intact and handed over back in good condition to the respective office after completion of audit. The firm shall make good to the Nigam any loss suffered by it due to default of the firm in this respect by imposing penalty of 5% of bill value as per penalty clause No. 22 (IV). Further it is clarified that the audit work shall invariably be carried out at subdivision headquarter only. No any data/report/paper of Nigam shall be allowed to be taken outside from the subdivision office.

17. Security & Secrecy :-

Auditor shall not disclose the result of audit wholly or partly to anybody else other than to the designated authority of the Nigam and shall maintain a close secrecy in this regard.

18. Amendment in Scope of Work :-

The Nigam may revise or amend the scope of work anytime. Such revision/amendments, if any, will be communicated to all the firms/societies.

19. Conduct of Auditor's Staff :-

If any of the Auditor's Firm/Society staff in the opinion of Nigam is found guilty or incompetence or negligence or commits misconduct, then if so directed by the Nigam, the Firm/Society shall at once remove such assistant/employee/member and replace him / her by a qualified and competent substitute.

20. Lien :-

In case of any lien or claim pertaining to the work and responsibility of the Firm/Society for which the Nigam might become liable, it shall have right to recover such claim amount from the Auditor.

21. Coordination from Zonal Internal Audit Office :-

Each of the Zonal Internal audit office shall be required to coordinate with the auditor in such a manner so as to complete the audit of respective office within stipulated time.

22. Penalty / Liquidated Damages :-

I. For delay in execution of work/audit

The time for completion of the job as stipulated in work order shall be deemed to be the essence of the contract. In case of delay in execution, penalty @ ½% per week or part thereof for first four weeks and thereafter 1% per week or part thereof, of the bill value, subject to maximum 10% of bill value will be imposed for delay in completion of audit work or delay in submission of Audit Report beyond the time limit prescribed in the order.



For this purpose, the date of receipt of report in the office of the concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA) / AO (IA) shall be considered for calculation of penalty. Interim report or incomplete report shall not be considered for submission.

II. For not submitting charging sheets to the subdivision timely

- Where re-audit is not to be done: If firm do not submit all charging sheets to the subdivision at least 15 days before submission of final audit report to concern Zonal Sr. AO (IA) / AO (IA) it will attract a penalty of Rs. 5000/- from the firm/society.
- ii. Where re-audit is to be done after fail in sample test:-In case, where firm is required to conduct Re-audit, it is required to submit all revised charging sheets in sub-division within 15 days after finalization of second sample test check report (from the date of issuance of letter of compliance in reference to sample test check report from concerned Zonal Sr. AO (IA) / AO (IA)), otherwise it will attract recovery of Rs. 5000/from the firm/society.
- III. In addition to above, a recovery of 5% of bill value will be imposed, if old SOSDs not verified/partially verified/wrong verified/status of all pending irregularities of all previous years ICRs is not submitted by firm in proper manner along with abstract.
- IV. An additional recovery of 5% of bill amount will be imposed for any loss of record of the Nigam in view of clause No. 16 above.
- V. However, the maximum ceiling of all kinds of recoveries shall be 20% of the bill amount against the audit work allotted. The Nigam shall adjust the penalty imposed (if any) from the Security Deposit available with the Nigam.

23. Extension of period of Contract :-

The contract period for conducting Revenue Audit shall initially be for a period of Two Years, which can be extended further for 3 (Three) Months at a time at the discretion of Ajmer Discom on the same rates and terms & conditions.

Any extension in time beyond scheduled period as mentioned/calculated for consumers to be audited as per the work order shall only be considered on merits by the competent authority.

- 24. The Nigam will provide reasonable workspace and furniture for the audit team. Other resources viz., computers, telephone, stationery etc., would have to be arranged by the Auditors at its own cost.
- 25. The Audit shall be conducted by the team consisting of full time professional/member and assistant(s) having audit experience as prescribed in pre qualification requirement.
- 26. All the Audit Reports shall be signed by the Authorized Signatory of the Auditor Firm/Society. The person signing the audit report shall be responsible for the all work done by the audit team, irrespective of composition of visiting team at Audit office.

27. Cancellation of Contract/ Work Order: -

The AVVNL may upon written notice of default, terminate contract/ work order in the circumstances detailed hereunder:-

- a) If in the opinion of the Nigam, the auditor Firm/Society fails to perform the work within the time specified or during the period for which the Nigam has granted extension.
- b) If in the opinion of the Nigam, the auditor Firm/Society fails to comply with any of the provisions of this contract. In such case, a written notice shall be served by the Nigam to the Auditor Firm/Society to stop further activities and take urgent steps towards corrective measures, failing which the work order will be cancelled.
- c) In the event of such termination, the Nigam shall exercise its discretionary powers to award the work to other professional firm/Society after giving due notice to the terminated Auditor Firm/Society on account at the risk and cost of new Auditor Firm/Society which have to be borne by terminated Auditor Firm/Society.
- d) The performance of the Auditor Firm/Society shall be reviewed periodically and for any unsatisfactory performance, the Nigam reserves the right to terminate the work order, giving a notice of 15 days to the Auditor Firm/Society.
- e) In case of unsatisfactory performance in view of clause No. 12 above, the Nigam reserves the right to terminate the empanelment, giving a notice to the empanelled firm/society.
- f) The Nigam reserves all rights, not to give any reason in writing or otherwise, towards cancellation of the contract at any time.
- g) The decision of the Nigam shall be final regarding the acceptability of the report submitted by the auditors Firm/Society and the Nigam shall not be required to give any reason(s) in writing or otherwise at any time towards rejection of the same.
- h) The Bid is liable to cancellation in the event of any professional or other misconduct, which has been taken cognizance by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India or The Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of India or any other authority, coming to light at the later date. In the event of such termination Auditors

28. Auditor's Default :-

If the Auditor's neglects to execute the work with the due diligence and expedition or refuses or neglects to comply with any reasonable orders given in writing by any representative of the Nigam, in connection with the works or contravenes the provision of the contract, the Nigam may give notice in writing to the Auditor to make good the failure, neglect or contravention complained of. If the Auditor fails to comply with the notice within 15 (Fifteen) days from the date of service thereof, then in such case the Nigam shall be at liberty to employ other workmen and forthwith execute such part of the audit as the Auditor may have neglected to do or if the Nigam shall think fit, it shall be lawful for it without prejudice to any other right, it may have under the contract, to take the audit wholly or in part out of the Auditor's hands and re-contract with any person or persons to complete the audit or



any part thereof and in that event the Nigam shall be free to use all Auditor's equipments that may have been at the time on the site in connection with the works without being responsible to the Auditor over the same and the Nigam shall be entitled to retain and apply any balance which may be necessary, the payment of the cost of executing the said part of the audit. If the cost of completing the audit or executing a part thereof as aforesaid exceeds the balance payment due to the Auditor, the Auditor shall pay such excess. Such payment of excess amount shall be exclusive of the liquidated damages for delay, which the Auditor shall have to pay if the completion of audit is delayed.

29. Failure to execute contract :-

The successful empanelled firms/societies failing to execute the order placed on them to the entire satisfaction of the Nigam with terms & conditions set forth therein, will be liable to make good the loss sustained by the Nigam, subsequent to the placing of fresh orders elsewhere at higher rates, i.e. the difference between the price accepted in the contract already entered into and the price at which fresh offers have been placed.

30. Offences and Lapses on part of the bidder/firm/society

All other contractual obligations including lapses, offenses on part of the bidder/ firm/society shall be dealt following the respective provisions of the RTPP Act 2012 and RTPP Rules 2013 amended from time to time.

31. Compensation/ Penalty for Non-Execution /Delay in Execution of Work

a) Delay in execution of works

In case of delay in execution of works beyond stipulated period the following recovery /action shall be made applicable

- Delay in execution of work is governed by clause No. 22 mentioned above
- Uncompleted work shall be cancel with levying penalty as per (i) above and if so desired to get the work completed by the other agencies/contractor that shall be done at the risk and cost of the contractor.
- iii. The adjustment in regard to the amount recoverable, if any, shall be made from the cash deposits/dues of the firm/Society or by operating the Security Deposit as may be available with the Nigam and/or in any other manner as may be deemed appropriate by the Nigam.

b) Penal Provision for non-execution of contract/works

- The Bid security taken from a bidder shall be forfeited in the following cases, namely
 - a) When the bidder withdraws or modifies its bid after opening of bids.
 - b) When the bidder does not execute the agreement, if any, after placement of supply/work order within the specified period;
 - c) When the bidder fails to commence the supply of the goods or service or execute the work as per supply/work order within the time specified.

- d) When the bidder does not deposit the performance security within specified period after the supply/work order is placed; and
- e) If the bidder breaches any provision of code of integrity prescribed for bidders specified in the RTPP Act 2012 and Chapter 6 of these rules.

ii. Rule 82 of RTPP rules 2013. Breach of code of integrity by the bidder:-

Without prejudice to the provisions of Chapter IV of the RTPP Act 2012, in case of breach of any provision of the code of integrity by a bidder or prospective bidder, as the case may be, the procuring entity may take appropriate action in accordance with the provisions of subsection (3) of section 11 and section 46 of RTPP Act 2012.

iii. Interference with procurement process.-

a) Whoever-

- interferes with or influences any procurement process with the intention of securing any wrongful gain or undue advantage for any prospective bidder or bidder; or
- interferes with the procurement process with the intention of causing any unfair disadvantage for any prospective bidder or bidder; or
- engages in any action or lobbying, directly or indirectly, with the objective of unduly restricting fair competition; or
- d. intentionally influences any procuring entity or any officer or employee thereof or willfully or fraudulently makes any assertion or representation that would restrict or constrain fair competition in any procurement process; or
- e. engages a former officer or employee of a procuring entity as an employee, director, consultant, adviser or otherwise, within a period of one year after such former officer or employee was associated with a procurement in which the employer had an interest; or
- f. engages in any form of bid-rigging, collusive bidding or anticompetitive behaviour in the procurement process; or
- g. intentionally breaches confidentiality referred to in section 49 for any undue gain,

shall be punished with imprisonment for a term which may extend to five years and shall also be liable to fine which may extend to fifty lakh rupees or ten per cent of the assessed value of procurement, whichever is less.

b) A bidder who-

- withdraws from the procurement process after opening of financial bids;
- b. withdraws from the procurement process after being declared the successful bidder;

- fails to enter into procurement contract after being declared the successful bidder;
- fails to provide performance security or any other document or security required in terms of the bidding documents after being declared the successful bidder, without valid grounds,

shall, in addition to the recourse available in the bidding documents or the contract, be punished with fine which may extend to fifty lakh rupees or ten per cent of the assessed value of procurement, whichever is less.

iv. Vexatious appeals or complaints:-

Whoever intentionally files any vexatious, frivolous or malicious appeal or complaint under this Act, with the intention of delaying or defeating any procurement or causing loss to any procuring entity or any other bidder, shall be punished with fine which may extend to twenty lakh rupces or five per cent of the value of procurement, whichever is less.

v. Debarment from bidding.-

- a) A bidder shall be debarred by the State Government if he has been convicted of an offence –
 - under the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988 (Central Act No. 49 of 1988); or
 - b. under the Indian Penal Code, 1860 (Central Act No. 45 of 1860) or any other law for the time being in force, for causing any loss of life or property or causing a threat to public health as part of execution of a public procurement contract.
- b) A bidder debarred under sub-section (1) as above shall not be eligible to participate in a procurement process of any procuring entity for a period not exceeding three years commencing from the date on which he was debarred.
- c) If a procuring entity finds that a bidder has breached the code of integrity prescribed in terms of section 11 of RTPP Act 2012, it may debar the bidder for a period not exceeding three years.
- d) Where the entire bid security or the entire performance security or any substitute thereof, as the case may be, of a bidder has been forfeited by a procuring entity in respect of any procurement process or procurement contract, the bidder may be debarred from participating in any procurement process undertaken by the procuring entity for a period not exceeding three years.
- e) The State Government or a procuring entity, as the case may be, shall not debar a bidder under this section unless such bidder has been given a reasonable opportunity of being heard.

Chief Accounts Officer (IA)



Section VII: FORMS AND ANNEXURES

Annexure I - Covering Letter

(Format for covering letter to the Bid submitted by the Bidders On Letter Head)

The Chief Accounts Officer (IA), Ajmer Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited, Vidyut Bhawan, Panchsheel Nagar, Makarwali Road, Ajmer- 305 004

Sub: Bid against proposal for the "Revenue Audit" against TN RA-01/2023-24

Sir.

We have procured tender specification TN RA- 01/2023-24 for conducting Revenue Audit in various subdivisions of AVVNL.

We agree to provide the services as per the scope of work given under this tender specification.

We also agree that:-

- The prices as mentioned in "Financial offer (Price schedule)" are firm in all respect.
- The prices quoted are valid for a period of 120 days from the date of opening of technical bid or 90 days from the date of opening of price bid whichever is later.
- We also understand that the quantities mentioned in the price schedule shall be meant for bid evaluation and payment shall be made to us on the basis of actual number of services delivered.
- 4. We have understood the terms of payment and undertake to abide by the same.
- We understand that conditional offers are likely to be rejected.
- The execution of work shall strictly be in accordance with the work completion schedule as given by AVVNL. In case we fail to complete the work as indicated therein we shall pay penalty as per relevant clauses of the specification.
- 7. The services provided by us shall conform to the specifications.
- We confirm that we agree to adhere to all the commercial terms and conditions as well as the technical stipulation of your specification and there is no deviation. Such acceptance has also been confirmed in prescribed schedules.
- 9. We understand that the basis for our qualification will be our Bid and that any circumstances affecting our continued eligibility under the enquiry or any circumstances which would lead or have led to our disqualification under the enquiry shall result in our disqualification under this process.
- We declare that, we are not facing any enquiry or investigation under "Prevention of Corruption Act in India, 1988".



11. Until a formal contract is prepared and executed, this is in acceptance and support of award which shall constitute a binding contract between us. We also understand that the AVVNL reserves its right to reject any or all of the bids without assigning any reason.

We agree to abide by all the conditions governing the proposals and decisions of the AVVNL.

Encl:

- 1. BID Document
- 2. Annexure-I (A) General Profile
- 3. Annexure-I (B) Personal Capabilities & Turnover
- Annexure II Technical & Commercial Deviation from the specifications.
- Annexure III Power of Attorney in favour of Authorized Signatory
- 6. Annexure IV Form- B Declaration under RTPP Act
- 7. Documents required under Section- II
- 8. Other (if any)

Yours faithfully,

Place Date & Seal of Firm/Society Authorized Signatory Name & Designation Address of Bidder



Annexure I (A) - General Profile of the Bidder (Commercial Details of the Bidder)

1			200705A5A624 100		
	Full	name of Bidder (Firm/ Soci	ety etc.)		
2	Loca	tion of Head/ Registered O	ffice :		
	Loca	tion of Branches			
3	Full .	Address of Head /Registere	d Office :		
1	Full	Address of Branch in Rajas	than :		
5	Addr	ess of correspondence in R	ajasthan :		
	(If di	ffer than S. No. 4)			
i	Date	of Commencement of Busi	ness :		
,	No. o	f Years of running actively	:		
į.	Telep	hone / Mobile No.	. —		
1	E-ma	il Address	. —		
0	PAN	of Firm/Society	: -		
ı	GST	N Detail	. —		
l(a)	In cas	se of Proprietorship / Partne	ershin firm Name & I	Details of Proprieto	or/Partners:
	S. No	Name of Proprietor / Partner	Qualification (CA/FCA/ CMA/FCMA)	Membership No.	DISA/ CISA
			-		
(b	o)No. o	f Article/Audit Assistants e	employed with CA Fi	rm / CWA Firm :	
			V 2015-47 399 STOLES - 1254 YES PRODUCED A		
	In cas	e of Society / Individual A	pplicant Name & De	tails of Members ;	
			V 2015-47 399 STOLES - 1254 YES PRODUCED A		-
	In cas	e of Society / Individual A	pplicant Name & De	Designation at the time of	GPO/PPC



14(b) Firms which have successfully completed Revenue Audit in any Power Distribution Company under Central / Other State Govt. and Department / PSU / Nigams / Corporations /Govt. Companies of the Govt. of Rajasthan required to fill the

following Format (as applicable):

Fin. Year	Name of Entity	Subdivision Name	Audit Period	Work Order No. & Date	No. of Consumers Audited	Total Assessment Detected
2017-18	4					
2018-19						
2019-20						
2020-21			1			
2021-22						
2022-23						

Authorized Signatory
Name & Title of Signatory with Seal



Annexure I (B) - Personal Capabilities

Format for submission with the bid

Number and Category of Personnel to be deployed on the Work, if undertaken

Provide the information as required in the following table:-

S. No.	Name of Personnel	Qualification of Personnel / Name of Post from which Retired	Type of work done so far	Experience (in Years)
1	rersonner	of Post from which Redied	done so rai	(III I CIII I)
2				
3				
4				
5				
5				
7				
8				
9				
10				

Financial Details (as per audited Balance sheets) (Not to be filled by the Society of Retired Personnel)

Please enclose copies of audited / certified annual Balance sheets and P&L Account of past three years.

S. No.	Particulars	Turn Over from professional receipts
1	FY 2019-20	
2	FY 2020-21	
3	FY 2021-22	
4	Total for past three years	
5	Average of past three financial years	

Authorized Signatory Name & Title of Signatory Name & Address of Bidder



Annexure II - Technical & Commercial Deviation from the specifications

Technical Deviations

S. No	AVVNL'S specification clause	Deviation sought by the bidder
1		
2		
3		

Commercial Deviations

S. No	AVVNL'S specification clause	Deviation sought by the bidder
1		
2		
3		

(Signature)
Name & Designation
With seal of the Bidder



Annexure III - The Power of Attorney in favour of Authorized Signatory

(The Notarized Power of Attorney in favour of Authorized Signatory is must for every Bidder)

FORMAT (on Letter Head)

We,
The said partners/ members are authorized to sign any documents related to tender documents to be submitted with respect to "Tender Offer for Revenue Audit" with Ajmer VidyutVitran Nigam Limited (AVVNL).
The said partners/ members/ authorized representatives are fully authorized to appear, file or withdraw any document, to make, receive from and enter into correspondence with all or any such authorities and to apply for and receive payments and copies of all documents and work orders on the behalf of the firm/ society.
We agreeing to ratify and confirm all the acts so done by said representative as my/us to al intents and purposes. This authority shall remain in force until revoked by me/ us in writing.
Dated at this
Authorized Signatory
Name: Design Membership No
Signature of Partners (Firm)/ Signature of Secretary (Society)

(Notary Public) No. Sign & Seal



Annexure IV - Form B - Declaration by the Bidder

In relation to my/ our bid submitted to CAO (IA), AVVNL, Ajmer for procurement of in response to their notice inviting bids under TN- RA 01/2023-24 I/We hereby declare under section 7 of Rajasthan Transparency in Public Procurement Act, 2012, that:-

- I/We possess the necessary professional, technical, financial and managerial resources and competence required by the bidding document issued by the procuring entity.
- I/We have fulfilled my/ our obligation to pay such of the taxes payable to the Union and the State Government or any local authority as specified in the bidding document.
- I/We are not insolvent, in receivership, bankrupt or being wound up, not have my/
 our affairs administered by a court or a judicial officer, not have my/ our business
 activities suspended and not the subject of legal proceeding for any of the
 foregoing reasons.
- 4. I/We do not have, and our directors and officers not have, been convicted of any criminal offence related to my/ our professional conduct or the making of false statements or misrepresentations as to my/ our qualifications to enter into a procurement contract within a period of three years preceding the commencement of this procurement process, or not have been otherwise disqualified pursuant to debarment proceedings.
- I/We do not have a conflict of interest as specified in the Act, Rules and the bidding document, which materially affects fair competition.

Date:			
Place:			

Signature of Bidder

Name : Designation: Address :



Annexure V - Circle Wise List of Subdivisions

ZONE	S.No.	CIRCLE	S.No.	Name of S/D
Ajmer	1	ACC	1	O&M Masuda
Ajmer	1	ACC	2	O&M Madar
Ajmer	1	ACC	3	CSD-II Beawar
Ajmer	1	ACC	4	CSD-I Beawar
Ajmer	1	ACC	5	O&M Jawaja
Ajmer	1	ACC	6	O&M Saradhana
Ajmer	1	ACC	7	O&M Pisangan
Ajmer	1	ACC	8	O&M Pushkar
Ajmer	1	ACC	9	RIICOBeawar
Ajmer	2	ADC	1	O&M Nasirabad
Ajmer	2	ADC	2	O&M Sarwar
Ajmer	2	ADC	3	O&M Kekri
Ajmer	2	ADC	4	O&M Kishangarh
Ajmer	2	ADC	5	O&M Bhinay
Ajmer	2	ADC	6	Rural Kishangarh
Ajmer	2	ADC	7	O&M Roopangarh
Ajmer	2	ADC	8	O&M Bijainagar
Ajmer	2	ADC	9	O&M Sawar
Ajmer	2	ADC	10	O&M Arain
Ajmer	2	ADC	11	RIICO Kishangarh
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	1	O&M Gangapur
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	2	O&M Asind
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	3	O&M Mandal
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	4	O&M Hurda
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	5	O&M Banera
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	6	O&M Mandalgarh
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	7	Rural -I Bhilwara
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	8	O&M Bigod
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	9	O&M kareda
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	10	O&M Badnore
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	11	CSD-IV Bhilwara
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	12	CSD-I Bhilwara
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	13	CSD-II Bhilwara
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	14	O&M Kotri
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	15	Rural Jahajpur
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	16	O&M Raipur
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	17	O&M Shahpura
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	18	O&M Bijoliya
-	3	Bhilwara	19	CSD-III Bhilwara
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	20	Rural -II Bhilwara
Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	21	O&M Jahajpur
Ajmer Ajmer	3	Bhilwara	22	O&M Phuliya

Ajmer	4	Nagaur	1	O&M Deedwana
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	2	REC Nagaur
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	3	O&M Nawa City
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	4	O&M Molasar)
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	5	O&M Merta City
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	6	O&M Khinvasar
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	7	O&M Nagaur
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	8	O&M Bherunda
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	9	O&M Riyabari
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	10	O&M Bagot
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	11	O&M Jayal
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	12	O&M Parabatsar
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	13	REC Makarana
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	14	O&M Degana
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	15	O&M Deh
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	16	O&M Gacchipura
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	17	O&M Mundawa
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	18	O&M Makarana
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	19	Rural Ladnun
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	20	REC Kuchaman
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	21	O&M Ladnu
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	22	O&M Chitawa
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	23	O&M ChotiKhatu
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	24	O&M Kuchaman City
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	25	O&M Sanju
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	26	REC Merta City
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	27	O&M Gotan
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	28	O&M Nimbijodha
Ajmer	4	Nagaur	29	O&M Rol
Jhunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	1	O&M Udaipurwati
Thunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	2	O&M Jhunjhunu
Thunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	3	O&M Khetri Town
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	4	O&M Chirawa
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	5	O&M Baggar
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	6	O&M Mukundgarh
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	7	O&M Pilani
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	8	O&M Buhana
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	9	O&M Surajgarh
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	10	Rural Nawalgarh
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	11	Rural Jhunjhunu
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	12	O&M Gudagorji
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	13	O&M Malsisar
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	14	O&M Khetrinagar
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	15	O&M Nawalgarh
hunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	16	O&M Mandawa



Jhunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	17	O&M Badgaon
Jhunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	18	O&M Bissau
Jhunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	19	O&M Babai
Jhunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	20	O&M Sultana
Jhunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	21	Rural Gudhagorji
Jhunjhunu	5	Jhunjhunu	22	O&M Chanana
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	1	O&M Reengus
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	2	O&M Peeprali
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	3	O&M Laxmangarh
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	4	O&M Palsana
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	5	O&M Shrimadhopur
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	6	Rural Fatehpur
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	7	O&M Fatehpur
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	8	CSD-II Sikar
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	9	O&M Ajeetgarh
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	10	O&M Khandela
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	11	O&M Dhod
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	12	Rural Sikar
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	13	CSD-III Sikar
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	14	O&M Kanwat
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	15	Rural Laxmangarh
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	16	O&M Patan
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	17	CSD-I Sikar
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	18	O&M Dantaramgarh
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	19	O&M Losal
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	20	O&M NeemKa Thana
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	21	O&M Nechhawa
Thunjhunu	6	Sikar	22	Rural NeemKa Thana
Jhunjhunu	6	Sikar	23	O&M Khatushyamji
Ihunjhunu	6	Sikar	24	O&M RamgarhShekhawati
hunjhunu	6	Sikar	25	O&M Khachariyawas
hunjhunu	6	Sikar	26	O&M Thoi
hunjhunu	6	Sikar	27	O&M Kudan
Jdaipur	7	Banswara	1	O&M Ghatol
Jdaipur	7	Banswara	2	O&M Bagidora
Jdaipur	7	Banswara	3	Rural Banswara
Jdaipur	7	Banswara	4	O&M Partapur
Jdaipur	7	Banswara	5	O&M Garhi
Jdaipur	7	Banswara	6	City-I Banswara
Jdaipur	7	Banswara	7	O&M Sajjangarh
Idaipur	7	Banswara	8	O&M Anandpuri
Idaipur	7	Banswara	9	City-II Banswara
Idaipur	7	Banswara	10	O&M Kushalgarh
Jdaipur	7	Banswara	11	O&M Chotisarvan
Jdaipur	8	Chittorgarh	1	O&M Bari Sadari

Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	2	O&M Dungla
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	3	O&M Kapasana
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	4	O&M Begun
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	5	O&M Bhadesar
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	6	O&M Rawatbhata
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	7	O&M Gangrar
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	8	O&M Rashmi
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	9	O&M Bhopalsagar
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	10	O&M Nimbahera
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	11	O&M Bassi
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	12	Rural Chittorgarh
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	13	O&M-I Chittorgarh
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	14	O&M Mangrol
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	15	Rural Nimbahera
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	16	O&M-II Chittorgarh
Udaipur	8	Chittorgarh	17	O&M Sawa
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	1	O&M Dhambola
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	2	O&M Bichhiwara
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	3	Rural Dungarpur
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	4	O&M Dungarpur
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	5	Rural Sagwara
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	6	O&M Sagwara
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	7	O&M Chitri
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	8	O&M Aspur
Udaipur	9	Dungarpur	9	O&M Sabla
Udaipur	10	Pratapgarh	1	O&M Dhariyawad
Udaipur	10	Pratapgarh	2	O&M Pratapgarh
Udaipur	10	Pratapgarh	3	Rural Pratapgarh
Udaipur	10	Pratapgarh	4	O&M Peepalkunt
Udaipur	10	Pratapgarh	5	O&M Dalot
Udaipur	10	Pratapgarh	6	O&M Choti Sadari
Udaipur	10	Pratapgarh	7	Rural Choti Sadari
Udaipur	10	Pratapgarh	8	O&M Arnod
Udaipur	11	Rajsamand	1	O&M Deogarh
Udaipur	11	Rajsamand	2	O&M Amet
Udaipur	11	Rajsamand	3	O&M Nathdwara
Udaipur	11	Rajsamand	4	O&M Bheem
Jdaipur	11	Rajsamand	5	O&M Railmagra
Jdaipur	11	Rajsamand	6	O&M Rajnagar
Jdaipur	11	Rajsamand	7	O&M Kankroli
Jdaipur	11	Rajsamand	8	O&M Khamnore
Jdaipur	11	Rajsamand	9	O&M Kelwa
Jdaipur	11	Rajsamand	10	O&M Kelwara
Jdaipur	11	Rajsamand	11	O&M Janawad
Jdaipur	11	Rajsamand	12	O&M Delwara

Udaipur	11	Rajsamand	13	O&M Gilund
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	1	O&M Kherwara
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	2	O&M Mavli
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	3	O&M Gogunda
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	4	O&M Madhuban
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	5	O&M Jhadol
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	6	O&M Savina
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	7	O&M Sarada
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	8	O&M Salumber
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	9	O&M Rishabhdev
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	10	Sec4 Udaipur
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	11	O&M Debari
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	12	O&M Badgaon
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	13	O&M Girwa
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	14	Rural Salumber
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	15	O&M Ambamata
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	16	O&M Bhinder
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	17	O&M Ashoknagar
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	18	O&M Madri
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	19	O&M Veerpura
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	20	O&M Vallabhnagar
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	21	O&M Bhatewar
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	22	O&M Kurabad
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	23	PH-II Udaipur
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	24	PH-I Udaipur
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	25	O&M Lasadiya
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	26	O&M Kotra
Udaipur	12	Udaipur	27	O&M Kanod
		The Control of the Co		The Carlo and All Carlos and All Car



Annexure VI - Guidelines for making online payments

For participation in this tender, the bidder can also make online payment of Tender fees, RISL fees, Earnest Money Deposits (EMD)/ Bid security etc., the following procedure shall be followed for making online payment and getting receipts thereof-

 The bidder who wishes to make online payment shall make payment through online mode of NEFT/RTGS/IMPS/UPI/ any other mode of online transfer in the following bank account of AVVNL-

Account Holder Name : Sr. Accounts Officer (EA & Cash), AVVNL, Ajmer

Bank Name : State Bank of India

Branch : Collectrate Branch, Jaipur (31026)

Account Number : 61186312571 IFSC Code : SBIN0031026

Timing for deposition will be from 9:30 AM to 4:00 PM (upto 2:00 PM on 23-06-2023) on working days. Amount deposited after this timing shall be treated as deposited on next working day.

After depositing the amount in the above-mentioned bank account, the bidder shall
mandatorily intimate the same through e-mail containing the following information
on the e-mail id <u>aocasha9@gmail.com</u> on the same day.

1.	Name of the Bidder	
2.	Address of Bidder	
3.	GST Number	
4.	Tender Number	
5.	Details of Amount Deposited	
	RISL Fee	
	Tender Fee	
	EMD/Bid Security	
	Any other (Please specify)	
	Total	
6.	Mode of Payment	NEFT/ RTGS/ IMPS/ UPI/ any other mode of online transfer
7.	Transaction Reference number (UTR No.)	

- 3. After receiving the above complete information from the bidder on email as mentioned in point 2, it will be verified that the amount deposited by the bidder has been reflected in the Nigam's bank account. On confirmation of the same, A-9 shall be issued and copy of it will be mailed to the bidder on the same email ID from which the information was received.
- The bidder is required to upload the receipts (A-9) of depositions of all above payments along with his bid at the relevant place on the schedule date and time.



otherwise his bid shall liable to be rejected. The receipt (A-9) issued by Nigam shall only be considered as a proof of deposit. Any other details like UTR No. etc. shall not be considered as a proof of deposit.

Note:-

- All above said payments shall be accepted latest upto 2:00 PM on 23-06-2023.
- The bidder is required to deposit the amount and intimate the same well in advanced instead of waiting last date so that A-9 receipt could be issued well in time. In case, the bidder does not submit required information in time, the bidder shall be solely responsible for non issuance of A-9 receipt on time and consequences thereof.
- 3. In case the bidder furnishes incomplete information on email then the bidder shall be intimated by office of AO (Cash) once, to furnish complete information and even after that if complete information is not received within time than bidder shall be solely responsible for non issuance of receipt. The bidder shall not be eligible to participate in the tender in case the email is received after the closing time and date of submission of tenders as mentioned in the Bidding Document.
- 4. The bidder is required to deposit the amount (EMD/Bid Security/Tender Fee/RISL Fee/ Type test Fee Etc.) strictly as per the tender documents. In case the amount deposited is less than the required amount as per bidding document than the bid shall be treated as non responsive and bidder shall be sole responsible for the same. If the bidder wishes to avail any concession/ relaxation as per condition of bidding document and deposit amount accordingly, he shall required to furnished the documents in support as mentioned in bidding documents. Non submission of required documents for availing concession/relaxation as per bidding document may lead to cancellation of his bid and bidder shall be sole responsible for the same.
- 5. The Receipts (A-9) shall be issued and emailed on the same working day on which on which detailed email is received up to 5:00 PM. Emails received on non working day or after 5:00 PM on working days shall be considered as received on next working days and receipts (A-9) shall be issued and emailed on that next working day.



Formats of Internal Audit Report as per Internal Audit Manual

AJMER VIDYUT VITRAN NIGAM LTD. (INTERNAL AUDIT ORGANISATION) INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT

IAR 1 (Para 26.3 (a to d)

Name of the Unit/Location	The same of the sa	FORT
Period of Accounts under Audit	Dura	tion of Audit
	Refe	rence of Internal Audit Party
	SECTION 'A'- AUDIT OBSERVATIONS INVOL	VING DIRECT REVENUE LOSS

5.	Audit Manual Para		Current	Audit	La	st Audit			
No.	Particulars 2 3 A. 7.1 Difference between physical and book balance of Cash (i) (i)Physical balance (ii)Book balance (ii)Book balance (ii)Book balance (ii)Book balance (ii)Book balance (ii)Book balance (iii)Book balance (iii)Bo	No of	Amount	from_	To	Extent of actual	Format reference		
1	-	P	No of Amount (Rupees) No of Amount (Rupees) A 5 6 7 act of stopped Act of stopped	checking	1 Samuel Elerence				
1			4		-		8	-	
	~ /1	Difference between physical and book balance of Cash			-			9	
							-	IAR-11 & 1.2	
					_		_		
_		Other irregularities in cash			_		_		
2	The state of the s	Non-assessment of average charges in respect of stopped /defective/burns meters.						IAR - 1.3 IAR - 1.9,	
3	-do-							1.12 & 1.13	
4	-do-							-do-	
5	-do-	Wong/non-charging of meter rent/fixed service charges	-					-do-	
6	-do-	Wong/non- assessment against theft/oillerage of energy						-do-	
7	-do-	Short working out of consumption and calculation errors	-	_				-do-	
8	-do-	Wrong/non-charging of miscellaneous charges.						IAR - 1.9, 1.12, 1.13, 1.15(C&D)	
9	-do-	Wrong/non-charging of load surcharge.						-do-	
10	11,12,13,23,24 & 25	Wrong/non-carry forward of balances.	_					-62-	
11	11,12,13,14,23,24 & 29	Wrong/non-transfer of amount from CC & AR and irregular credits.						WR15(b)	
12	11,12,13,23,24 & 25	incorrect posting of realization.	-					WR-1.15(e) & WR-1.16	
13	16.4	Non-issue of first bills.	_					- IAR-1.15(f)	
14	17 & 21	Under-charges in estimates.	-					MR-1.18	
15	19.7	Under-assessment in the case of theft and mai-practices.	_					MR-1.22	
16	26.3 (f)	Other (to be specified)	_					IAR - 1.24	
			_		1			IAR-1.42	
\neg		Total (A)	_						



SECTION 'B' AUDIT OBSERVATIONS RELATING TO PROCEDURAL DEVIATIONS

S, No.	Particulars	Observations	No. of cases	Amount involved if any	Extent of actual checking	Format reference
1.	3	4	5	6	7	8
1.	Deviations in cash				-	IAR-1.2
2.	Deviations in PCB/CCB/PCCB					LAR-1.3
3.	Deviation in Remittance Register	V = 5				IAR-1.4
4.	Deviations in the Register of cheques/DDs					IAR-1.5
5.	Deviations in M.O. Register					IAR-1.6
6.	Irregularities in Bank/Scrolls					IAR-1.7
7.	Deviation in receipts & A-26					IAR-1.8
8.	Irregularities in MRR & A-30					IAR-1.11
9.	Discontinuance of average charges					IAR-1.14
10.	Deviations in the checking of ledgers					IAR-1.15
11.	Incorrect posting of basic information in ledgers				*	IAR-1.15(a)
12.	Wrong/irregular credits					IAR-1.16
13.	Irregularities in CC & AR					IAR-1.17
14.	Cases of breach of priority					IAR-1.21
15.	Deviations in M.I.S.					IAR-1.25
16.	Irregularities in temporary connections					LAR-1.27
17.	Irregularities in the record of sub- divisions relating to HT consumers					IAR-1.39
18.	Irregularities in the record of sub divisions relating to MIP consumers				4	IAR-1.40
19.	Irregularities in the record of sub- divisions relating to SIP consumers					IAP-1.41
20.	Others (to be specified)					IAP-1.42
	TOTAL (B)					

SECTION 'C' AUDIT OBSERVATIONS RELATING TO MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

S. No.	Particulars	Observations	No. of cases	Amount involved if any	Extent actual checking	Format reference
	3	4 .	5	6	7	7
L.	Deviation from norms of checking the meter readings /seals a) S.E. b) X.Ea. c) A.Ea. d) J.Ea. e) M.L.		+			LAR-1.10
2.	Deviations from norms of Vigilance checking a) S.E. b) X.En c) A.En. d) J.En.			4		IAR-1.10
3,	Pendency in regular billing					IAR-1.19
4.	Pendency of applications for service connections					IAR-1.20
5.	Irregularities in debtors account					- IAR-1.23
6.	Pending service connections					IAR-1.32
7.	Non-providing of T. P. seals					IAR-1.33
8.	Non- compliance of MCOs	16		5	-	LAR-1.34
9.	Position of meter movement					IAR-1.35
10.	Non-compliance of DCOs					IAR-1.36
11.	Non-compliance of RCOs					IAR-1.37
12	Others (to be specified)					[AR-1.42
1	TOTAL(C)					

SECTION 'D' AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Certified that we have followed all the prescribed audit procedure/norms as mentioned in the internal audit manual and other instructions issued from time to time. All the audit findings/observations have been discussed with the unit officer and given in the final form in the prescribed reporting formats. It is also confirmed that the audit has been carried out to the best of our ability and effort.

BA

Signature of ARO

Signature of Unit Officer

REQUISITION FORM	·IAR – 3 Para 4.2 (ii)
Name of the Unit/Location	**
Name of Unit Incharge	
Reference of Internal Audit Party	
	100
Period of Accounts under audit	
FORM FOR THE REQUIREMENT OF BOOKS ACCOUNT AND DOCUMENTS TICKED AS BELOW.	OTHER RELEVANT
A. CASH SECTION	TICK
1. Perforted cash Books.	
2. Consumer Cash Books & PCCB.	
3. Cash receipts (A-6, A-8 & A-9).	
 Counter folio of bills in case of computer billing with its scroll (s). 	
Register of DD/cheque & pay order(A-45).	
Register of money order (A-31).	
Register of Empty receipt Books (A-26).	1
Register of Bank Scroll (A-44).	1 1 1 1
Register of Revenue Stamps.	
10. Bank Remittance Register (A-29)	
11. Bank Reconciliation Statements	
12. ———	
13. ———	3
B. CONSUMER SECTION	TICK
1. Priority Registers.	
Service connection Register(A-49).	Mark to the second
Service Connection files of the consumer,	(7
4. Minimum charge Register.	
Schedule of sanctioned villages.	



6. Schedule of non-sanctioned villages where	
Connections were provided.	
7. Concurrences received/obtained from	
Competent Authorities. 8. Store Issue Rates to check estimates.	
9. Capacitor Register.	
10	
11.	
C. REVENUE SECTION	TICK
1. Consumer ledgers.(Monthly & Annual)	
2. Meter Reading Records.	10
3. MIS 3.1 &3.2.	
 Register of reconnections/Disconnections. 	
5. Meter Change Order Register.	
Dally Progress Report of Meter Readers (A-30).	
7. Meter Reading/ Billing & Collection Programme.	
8. List of Ledger Keepers/Incharge of groups.	-
Register of Adjustment from Advance Deposits.	-
10. Load extension/reduction files.	
11. Name Change Files.	(1)
12. Record of EUDR Cases.	
13. Enchanced Security Recovery Register/records.	
14. AEN checking Register.	
15. Vigilance checking Register & files.	
16. Computer Output 6A,6B, 6C & 16A,16B, 16C	
17. Input Advice CB-4, CB-12, CB-15 & CB-9	-
18. Consumer files, Meter reading binders & JIRs	
Of MIP, SIP& Mix load consumers & other HT consumers	
19. Temporary connection files, ledgers & Binders	
20	-
D. OTHERS	TICK
Duplicate Bill Register.	*
2,	
3.	



E. JEN RECORDS		TICK ·
1. Meter Sealing Register.		
2. Connected load Register.		
3. Work/Job Register.		
4. Service Connection Register.		-
5. M.C./Meter Movement Register.		11, 12,
6. Capaciter Register.		
 Register of Dismentalled work in case of PDC/M.R. Cases. 	of	
8. JEN checking register.		
9. Vigilance checking register.		
 Installation / maintenance of transformer register. 		
11.Transformer Fallure register.		
12.DCO/RCO Register.		
13.MAS accounts register.		
14		
15		55.75 E
11.00		
	40	
Di	sted Signature of	internal Auditor along with

AJMER VIDYUT VITRAN NIGAM LTD. (INTERNAL AUDIT ORGANISATION) INTIMATION OF ARRIVAL / DEPARTURE OF THE IAP MEMBERS

(Para 4.2 (III))

Date			<u> </u>		15	Ref. of Progra Date	em No.					10
S. No.	Name of the IAP member (s)	Designation		headquart	erture from ter	Particulars of	arrival at o	destination	departure	dars of from the	Signature of IAP Member(s)	Remarks
			Date	Time	Mode of Journey	Destination	Date	Time	Date	Time		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
					*							
To:						,		Dated S	enature of	Internal A	uditor along v	with seal

CAMP

god

(INTERNAL AUDIT ORGANIZATION)

Para 4.2(XVIII)

Name of the Unit							- (3	Para 4.2(XVIII)
Period of accounts u	nder audit							
Duration of audit	20 125							
Name of the present	Unit Officer							
Name of the present	Acctt/Jr Acctt			200				
Name of the present	Cashier				4			
Number of consume	ers							
LT-1	I.T-2	LT-3	LT-4	LT-5	LT-6	LT-7	HT	TOTAL
Name(s) of Unit Of	Ticer(s) posted during t	he medited needed		-				
Names	mental posico duning i	ase audited period				Tenure		
				Fn	A STATE OF THE STA	To		
Namo(s) of Junior 8	Engineer(s) posted duri	ing the audited period	1					
Names			22.	200		Tenure		
				Fn	oen	То		
Name(s) of Jr. Acco	ountants/ Accountants	posted during the au	dited period					
Names				-	501	Tenure		
				Fr	om	Te		
Name(s) of Cashier Names	(s) posted during the a	udited period						
rvanics				<u> </u>	rom	coure		
					om	To		
Name(s) of Service Names	connection Clerk(s) po	osted during the audit	ted period			Ženes		
realities .				1	From	To		
		1 - 12-31 - 2011 I				1 10		
Name(s) of Unit Of Names	Ticer(s) posted during t	the audited period				22-12-17-17		
PARTIES				-	From	Tenure		
Name(s) of Internal Name(s)	Audit Party Member(s	Designation			· rous	То		
Total amount of Unc	der Assessment	Tota	l Number of special	audit notes issued				
Total number of S			ord not provided to		Details of a	record not audited	555 88	
Remarks, if any						and the second s	20	
ACTUALISM, II MILY								

(2)

Na	me of the u	nit/loc	R Vidyut V	ORGA	NISATIO	ON)								IAR -	
Dui	ration of au	unts ur	nder audit: Audit Party:	=				8						(Para	a.u,
_	5	tater	nent showi	ng devi	ations i										
S. No	Particulars	PARTICIPATION OF THE PROPERTY		in the am	ount nost	n ma	intena	ince :	and	checking	of P	CB/C	CCB/PC	CB .	
"	of cash book	Date						Dille	rence	in total(s)	1	Discrepancie		in receipt be	ooks
			receipt book		Posted	nount Difference sted		Actual Total total per c				Date Receip			Disc
1	2	3	4			-			00	OK					cy
Tota	1					-	7	8	9	10		11	12	13	14
	Diffe	rence in	amount trans	· f 1 -											
				sterred to	PCB			ther ca		Whethe	_	0	Other	Name(s)	Re
r (Page N		ence of CB/PCC o. & bo lo.	B amount to		nt Diffe rred .	rence	book(s) Checkin Clerk	g SDA	AEN			if any		and designatio n(s) of defaulter(mar ks
15	1 1	6	17	18	-	_						L.		s)	
otal				10	1	9	20	21	22	23			24	25	26
									Dat	ted Signature					

N	ame of unit/loca		NTERNAL	dyut Vitran N L AUDIT ORG	ANISATIO	N)	6.	IAR- 1 (Para 7	
Pe	riod of account	s under au	udit:						
Du	ration of audit:		15.00						
Re	ference of inter	nal Audit	Duet						
-									
s.	Balance as per	Physical	Difference	ving deviatio Action taken on	ns in cash	balance and o	ther shortcom	nings	-
·	РСВ	Balance in hand	if any	difference amount	Whether double lock system adopted	Whether key(s) kept separately with Unit Officer and Cashier	Whether the duplicate key(s) deposited with Accounting Unit		Rema ks
7	2	3	4	5	6				
1						7	8	9	10
1							7.4		
1		- 1	- 1		- 1				
				1	- 1				
			-	1					



ATMER VIDYUT VITRAN NIGAM LIMITED (INTERNAL AUDIT ORGANIZATION)

IAR-1.1 (Para 7.1.3)

Name of Unit Location Name of Unit Officer Name of Accountant/Jr. Acctt. Name of cashier Date & Time of physical verification		
DETAILS OF CASH PHYSICALLY VERIFIED A. REVENUE Rs. Rs. 1000 X Rs. 500 X Rs. 100 X Rs. 50 X Rs. 50 X Rs. 20 X Rs. 10 X Rs. 10 X Rs. 5 X Rs. 5 X Rs. 5 X Rs. 1 X COIN TOTAL	REPORT ON PHYSICAL VERIFICATION OF CASH B. TRANSFER WITHIN CIRCLE Rs. 1000 X Rs. 500 X Rs. 100 X Rs. 50 X Rs. 20 X Rs. 10 X Rs. 10 X Rs. 10 X Rs. 10 X Rs. 5 X Rs. 10 X	Rs.
C. IMPREST Rs. Rs. 1000 X	B. SHORT DURATION ADVANCE Rs. 1000 X	Rs.

BO

IMPREST/SDA ADVANCE MADE TO:-

	Plante & Designation of emple	75500 E	
1	Name & Designation of emplo	The state of the s	made Purpose An
		3	- 1
CASHIER		ARO/Accountant	Internal Auditor
		TE OF CHECKING CASH BALANCE	
POSITION AS		TE OF CHECKING CASH BALANCE Rs.	4
POSITION AS REVENUE TRANSFER V			4
POSITION AS REVENUE TRANSFER V IMPREST SDA	PER PCB BALANCE ON THE DA		4
POSITION AS REVENUE TRANSFER V IMPREST SDA	PER PCB BALANCE ON THE DA		4
POSITION AS REVENUE TRANSFER V IMPREST SDA TOTAL	VITHIN CIRCLE		
POSITION AS REVENUE TRANSFER V IMPREST SDA TOTAL	VITHIN CIRCLE		

Peri	ne of the unit/location od of accounts under a stion of audit; creace of internal Aud	udit	Vidyut Vitran N NAL AUDIT ORGA	igam Ltd. NISATION)	*					R-1.4 rs 9.1)
S. No.	Status of Register	Details of re- throug	Sta mirrances not routed th this register	Whether register being signed by depositor and unit officerSDA	Whathere	Bank Remittance Regist mittances are delayed if,	er so, mention det	sils	designation(s) of	Remarks
		Date	Amount	_	Date on which to be deposited	Actual date of deposit	Delay in days	Amount	defaulter(s)	
Tota	2 I	3	4	5	6	7	1	9	10	11

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor along with Seal

IAR-1.5 (Para 9.2)

Statement showing deviations in maintenance of Register of cheques/Drafts/Pay Orders/Postal Orders

S.No.	Status of Register	Detail	s of chequ entries o	res/DDs/8 of which i	Postni/ Pay not made	y orders	Whether the register	When	her chequ	es/DDs	Pas dep	osited in	to Bank t	imely.	Des		shonore	s cheque	s etc. not accou	inted for
		Date of receipt	Instru mens No. & date	Amou	From whom receiv ed	On what soccust	of cheques/D Ds/Pos in attested by unit officer	Dut e of rece ipt	Instru mest No. & date	Am	From who m recei ved	Date on while h to be depa	Actua I date of depes it	Del ay in day s	Instrume nt No. and date	Ame unt	Frem wbo m recei ved	On what acco unt		Romarks
1	2	3	4	5	6	7		-		-	_	sited								
Total				-	-	,		,	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21



No	Regist	Details accour Regist	sted for is	not		is of MO		ng deviation d by Un-	Detail	s of MOs s	not checked	Detail	s of MOs not check	entries of od by	Whether	Namo(s) and	Rema
	cr	Date	Amo	From	Dat	Amo	From	Name &	-			_	med effice	7	foils(s)/	designa	-
_		of recei pt	unt	m recei ved	e	unt	who m recei ved	designation of receiving officer	Date	Amou	From whom received	Date	Amou	From whom received	onepons are preserved by the	tion(s) of defaulte r(s)	
1.	2	3	4	5	6	7	9	Othicer	-						cashier	1	1
To tal							•	,	10	"	12	13	14	15	16	17	18

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

10

IAR-1.7 (Para 9.4 & 9.5)

Statement showing irregularities in Bank/Collection Scroll Register. Details of Difference between scroll(s) & Receipts(s) Details of late credit/deposit of cash collection in which interest not charged Date Name & Amount Amount Difference Date on which to Date of actual Amo Delay A/c No. of Amount as per as per scroll unt credit/deposit in days of interest consumer receipt credited/deposited

8

scroll(s) is	which int	t of cheques su crest not charg	pported t ed	y bank/	collection	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	Whether proper	Whether weekly		Remarks
Instrume nt No. & date	Amount	Date on which to be received	Actual date of receipt	y in	Amount of interest		by the checking clerk	bank collection advice being regularly sent	Designation (s) of defaulter(s)	
13	14	15	16	17	18	10	-			1
Total			-10	11	10	19	20	21	22	23

6



S.No.

1.

Status

of

Register

2

Statement showing deviation in maintenance & upkeep of Cash receipt book(s) & A-26 register.

S.No.	Status of Register	Register is checked & signed by	SIV-OIV-9 are	Whether register & Blank receipt books are kept in lock & personal custody of unit officer	in lock and key of cashier	are kent under	entries of used receipt books are	Name(s) & Designation(s) of defaulter(s)	Remarks
1.	4	3	4	15	6	7	8	0	10
Total						-			-

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

Statement showing difference in checking of cash output 6B with total of PCCB counterwise

S.No.	Date	Counter No.	Amount Posted at 6B of particula		Total collection counter as Per	d and the state of the	Difference Excess/Less posted as per	output 6B
			No. of enteries	Amount	No. of enteries	Amount	No. of excess/ less receipt posted in 6B	Amount

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

IAR-1.9 (Para 10.9)

WORKING SHEET FOR CALCULATION OF UNDER ASSESSMENT

Name of consumer

Account No.

Category

Sanctioned Load

S.No.	Brief reasons of	Period	Calculation				Under	assessmen	t.		Remarks
	under charges			Units	ND	ED	UC	WCC	Total	Rebate, if any	
1.	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
Total											

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

Signature of Unit In charge

Signature of ARO

Reference of CCAR No.

SOSD No.

Date & Month

BA

STATEMENT SHOWING DEVIATIONS IN CHECKING OF METERS/SEALS/VIGILANCE CHECKING (Para 10.10)

Name and designation of the officer	Period of posting	Whether register		T1 f cases	The second second second	T2 Cases	10,100,000	T3 Cases		T4 f cases	1000	T5 Cases
		maintained	To be checked	Actually	To be checked	Actually	To be checked	Actually	To be checked			Actually
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	checked	checked 12	checked 13
Total			-			100	7.1					

	LT6	the second	LT7		HT	1 .	TOTAL	
To be checked	Actually	To be checked	Actually	To be checked	Actually	To be	Actually	Remarks
14	1 15	16	17		The second second second	checked	checked	
		1.0	1.11	18	19	20	21	22

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

IAR-1.11
(Para 10.1 to 10.8)
STATEMENT SHOWING IRREGULARITIES IN METER READING RECORD AND DAILY PROGRESS REPORTS (A-30)

S. No.	Whether M.R.R. are bound	Whether daily progress reports are submitted by meter readers	Whether daily progress reports are maintained properly	Whether corrective measures taken on D.P.Rs.	Whether remarks in MRR being checked by AEN/JEN	Whether starting/last readings are correctly noted in the MRR	Name(s) & Designation(s) of defaulter(s)	
1.	2	3	4	5	6	7		
Total					-	-	- 0	9



SOSD No.

		IAR-1.12
	(Para	11.9, 12.7 & 13.8)
e		

STATEMENT OF SPOT DEBIT SHOWING UNDER ASSESSMENT DETECTED BY THE IAP DEBITED IN CC&AR AT SPOT

S. No.	of consu	202	Locality	Brief reason	Period	U nit	Amou	nt of un	der as	sexsm	ent		Referen		Mon th of	Units Debite		Amo	unt rea	lized		Rem
	mer	0.		s for undere harges		•	Niga m ducs	Elect Duty	uc	₩ c c	Total	Rebate if any	Book/ Item No.	Month & year	debi t in ledg	d	Nigam Dues	ED	UC	w c c	Cash receipt No. & date	- Keni-Li
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23
Tot al											-			-	1.0			-	-	f	1	23

Signature Dated Signature of ARO. Signature Unit Officer

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal Internal auditor(IAP

> [AR-1.13 (Para 11.9, 12.7 & 13.8)

SOSD (Un agreed) No. _____

Date____

STATEMENT SHOWING UNDER ASSESSMENT DETECTED BY THE IAP AND NOT DEBITED IN CC&AR AS NOT AGREED TO BY UNIT INCHARGE AT SPOT

S.No.	STATE OF STA		Locality	The state of the s	Period	Nigam Elect. Total Rebate if d			Reasons for	Remarks		
	consumer	No.		for undercharges			Nigam dues	Elect. Duty	Total	Rebate if any	difference of opinion with Unit Officer	
1	2 -	3	4	5	6.	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Total												- 1.0

BA

Signature
Dated Signature of ARO.

Signature Unit Officer Dated signature alongwith Seal Internal auditor (IAP _____

IAR-1.14

STATEMENT SHOWING DISCONTINUITY OF AVERAGE CHARGES WITHOUT RECTIFICATION/REPLACEMENT OF METERS

No.	Name of consumer	Account No.	Category	Month in which average charges discontinued	Total period/months during which average not charged	Amount	Name(s) & Designation(s) of defaulter(s)	Remarks
4.	2	3		-	Cian geo			
Total				 6 1	7 1		9 1	10

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor along with Seal

IAR-1.15

(PARA 11, 12, 13, 233, 243 & 253)

STATEMENT SHOWING IRREGULARITIES IN LEDGERS

S.No.	Ledger No.	wherei inform not/wr mentio ledger	in basic ation ongly ned in (as per 1.15(a)	Incorre forward balance per fort 1.15(b)	s(as na	In con posting reading forma	3773	Calcula errors i assessor (as per formal.	n Sensit	Incorre transfe carry forward from CC&A perform 1.15(e)	r/non d R (as na	Incompostir realiz (as per forma 1.15(t	g of ation r		her ledge ed as pre	rs being scribed	Nam e(s) & Desi gnati on (s)	Re mar ks
		Not menti oned	Wrongly mentione d	No. of cases	Amo unt invol ved	No. of cases	at invol ved	No. of cases	Amo unt invol ved	No. of cases	Am ount invo ived	No. of case	Am oust invo lved	Unit Offi cer	Accts. /Jr. Accts.	Checki ag Cleck	defa ulter (1)	
I.	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
Total		17151		S - 1			6-27-3	1111111										



S.No.	Ledger No.	consumer	Account	Category	Locality	Month & year	Information not mentioned	Information	wrongly m	ned in ledge entioned	Namo(s) & Designation (s) of	Remarks
						5 502		As per consumer File	As per ledger	Amount involved, if any	defaulter(s)	
TOTAL	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13

Note Ledger wise totals are to be shown in this list

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

IAR-1.15(b)

(COL NO 5 & 6)

Consumer wise detailed list of incorrect carry forward of balances in consumers' ledger(s) S.No. Ledger No. Name of Category Account Locality Month & Details of incorrect balance Name(s) & Designation Remarks consumer No. year Balance to be Actually Difference (s) of transferred transferred defaulter(s) Amount 8 10 11 12 TOTAL

Note Ledger wise totals are to be shown in this list

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

LAR-1.15(c)

(COL NO 7 & 8)

S.No.	Ledger	Name of	Account	Category	Locality	Month	Details of	incorrect post	ings of reading	85	Name(s) &	Remarks
	No.	consumer	No.			year	To be posted	Actually posted	Difference	Amount involved	Designation (s) of defaulter(s)	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
TOTAL			1							1000		

Note Ledger wise totals are to be shown in this list

IAR-1.16 (Para 14.6)

Statement showing the number of cases of wrong/Irregular credit.

S. No	Nam e of	No.	Cate	Loca	Billing month			W	rong /in	regular	credits					Name(s	Re
	cons			1	of		Thro	igh CC&AR			Withou	t Routing th	rough (CRAR	Total (11+	Designa	ma
	unici	umer irregular CC&AR ity no. &	Amount assessed by audit	Amount assessed by Vigilance	Others	Total (8+9 +10)	Amou nt assess ed by audit	Amount assessed by Vigilanc e		Total (12+1 3+14)	15)	of defaulte r(x)	rks				
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

IAR-1.17) (Para 14)

Statement showing irregularities in CC & AR Registers

S.No.	CC & AR No.		Whether checked by SDA & initialed	Whether checked by the unit officer initialed	register is reconciled with	Whether month wise abstract prepared & reconciled with abstract ledger(s)	Other irregularities, if any	Name(s) & Designation(s) of defaulter(s)	Remarks
1.	1 2	1	4	16					
	-	-	-	13	10	7	\$	9	10



IAR-1.18) (Para 16. 4)

Statement showing the pendency in first billing (category wise) as on.....

Category		Particular	s of pender	ncy	Total	Reasons for	Steps taken	Ironed de	ring audit	Manual A &	
	Upto 3 months	More	More	More than	(2+3+4	pendency	by the IAP		riod	Name(s) & Designation(s)	Remark 5
I. DLA-LTI	monus	than 3 upto 6 months	upto 12 months	months	+5)	No. 1190	for issuing the first bills	No. of bills	Amount	of defaulter(s)	
1.	2	3	4	5	6	7		-	- 10		- 10
					-	-	8	9	10	- 11	12
NDS-LT2	1			1							
STL-LT3											
AG-LT4	1	1 9									
SIP-LT5	1						1 1				
MIP-LT6	1 %					l	1 1		1 1		l .
MLX-LT7							1 1				
HT			11 8	1		1			1		
TOTAL				_							

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

IAR-1.19)

(Para16.1 to 16.3)

STATEMENT SHOWING PENDENCY IN REGULAR BILLING

S.No.	Year(s) for			Particulars of	f non-adhere	nce to billing p	rogramme		Name(s) &	Pemeda
	which billing programme not got approved	Ledger No.	Category	No. of bills not issued	Period of pendency in months		Total amount involved	non-issue		Remarks
1.	2	3	4	5	6	- ASSOSSINGING	(6x7)	of bills		
	1497.5	2.40	- "	_		,	8	9	10	11
TOTAL							_			



IAR-1.20)
(Pare 17.1)
STATEMENT SHOWING DETAILS OF CONNECTIONS RELEASED DURING THE AUDITED PERIOD & APPLICATIONS PENDING AT THE TIME OF
AUDIT

applications	Applicationa received	Total	Connect	Balan	۸۵	e wise deta applic	ils of pend ations	ing	Detai	applicat	st pending ion	Reasons	Remai
pending at the commencement of the audited period	during the audited period		released	(4-5)	Upto 3 months	More than 3 upto 6 months	More than 6 upto 12 months	More than 12 months	Prio rity No.	consu	Date of applicant on		
2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
	commencement of	pending at the during the commencement of audited period	pending at the during the commencement of audited period	pending at the during the released commencement of audited period	pending at the during the commencement of the audited period the audited period	pending at the during the commencement of the audited period the audit	pending at the during the commencement of the audited period the audit	pending at the commencement of the audited period t	pending at the commencement of the audited period t	pending at the commencement of the audited period t	pending at the commencement of the audited period than 3 than 3 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months rity of No. consumer	pending at the commencement of the audited period than 3 than 3 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months on the audited period than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months on the audited period than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 6 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 than 12 than 12 than 12 upto 6 upto 12 months than 12 upto 6 upto 12 upto 1	pending at the commencement of the audited period t

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

IAR-1.21)

(Para 17.2)

STATEMENT SHOWING THE STATUS OF A-49 AND PRIORITY REGISTERS INCLUDING CASES OF BREACH OF PRIORITY.

S.	Cases o	f breach of p	priority				Stage at	Details			Name(s) &	Remarks
No.		lars of the co priority was			priority was	onsumer(s) for breached	which priority	of breach	Register	Status of	Designation (s) of	
	Name	_	Priority No.	Name	Category	Priority No.	was breached	priority		priority register	Defaulter (s)	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Total											T. W.	



(IAR-1.22) (Para 17.3 to 17.11)

STATEMENT SHOWING IRREGULARITIES IN RELEASING NEW CONNECTION.

No.	Name of consume	No No	Categ	Locality	fina	rities in ncial		Under charg	es in Estim	ates			cash receip Demand	E (A-9) with Notice	Differen ce	Other
•	,			1 1	Justificat	ion if any					As pe	r D. N.	As	per A-9	Amount	rities
					Nature	Amount	Item	Amount charges ble	Amount already charged	Differenc	Date	Amou	CR No. & date	Amount		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17

	Partic	ulars of 'L' form(s)		Other	Name (s) &	Remarks
Whether received through R.R.	The state of the s	Whether certificate of physical checking and correctness recorded	Whether capacitor installed	irregularities	Designations(s) of defaulter(s)	
18	19	20	21	22	23	24

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

(IAR-1.24)

(Para 19.7)

STATEMENT OF IRREGULARITIES IN THE ASSESSMENT AGAINST THEFT AND MALPRACTICES.

S.No.		e a Head	T	eft cases	The state	and second			Cases of	malpractic	ccs		Name(s) &	Remar
	Name and address	A/c. No. if any	Amo unt recov erabl e	Amount already recovere d	Diffe rence (4-5)	Name(s) & Designati ons(s) of defaulter(s)	Name of consu mers	No.	Nature of malpract ice	Amoun t recover able	Amount already recovere d	Differ ence (10- 11)	Designatio ns(s) of defaulter(s)	ks
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
Total						0==0								



(IAR-1.27) (Para 21.1. to 21.7)

STATEMENT OF DEVIATIONS IN TEMPORARY CONNECTION(S)

S. No.	e of cons umer	No.	Ca teg or y	Loc ality	rele	arities in asing oction Amount	befe	nt recove see releasi onnection	ing		ularitie billing Amo unt	Whethe r reading	Whether extensions if any granted	contin			Whether meter was stopped/	Name(s) & Designation (s) of defaulter(s)	Rem- Arks
						involve d if any	To be recov ered	Actua Ily recov ered	Diff eren ee if any	c	invol ved if any	recorde d weekly	before expiry of previous period	From	To	Total deviati on	at the time of releasing		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
7	Total																		

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

(IAR-1.31) (Para 22)

STATEMENT SHOWING THE DEVIATION IN WORK/JOB ORDER REGISTER.

S.No.	Name	Status		ils of Job			C	ases of be	reach of prior	rity in c	xecution	ofjobs						Remarks
	of JEN(s)	of Register	not	entered in register	n the	Jo	b whose p	priority b	reached	lob	for which	priority	breached	Pendency	of jobs			-
			Job	Date	Name													
			No.	of receipt	Job	No.	Date of receipt	Name of Job	Name of consumer	Job No.	Date of receipt	Name of Job	Name of consumer	Job No. & date	Date of receipt	Name of Job	Name of consumer	
1	2	3		5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	1'7	18	19
Total																		



(IAR-1.32) (Para-22)

	Name	Same			iCCs no			Cases	of breach	of prior	rity in r	clease of o	connectio	ras .	Pendency	of Service	connect	ion Order	15	Kem
	HENES)	Register	ente	red in t	he regist	cr	SCOs	whose [monity be	ached	sco	s for whic	h priority	breached						arks
			SCO NA. & Date	Dat cof rece spe	Nam e of cons umor	Ca top or y	SC O No.	Date of recei pt	Name of consu mers	Cat egor y	SC O No. & date	Date of receipt	Name of coasu mers	Category	SCOS No. & date	Date of receipt	Name of consu- mers	Categ	Reaso ns of pende ncy	
1	12	3	14	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21
1	Scal	1	1	1	-	+	\vdash	1	1	\vdash	-				_	1				

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Scal

(IAR-1.34) (Para- 22)

S.No.	Name	Status of	Details of	MCOs no	a entered in	n the register		Cases of	breach	of priority	MCOS w	hose priority	y breached	VI
	A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH	Register	Three	phase	Sing	le Phase	norman and	Three p	phase			Single	Phase	
	JEN(s)		MCO No. & Date	Date of receipt	MCO No, & Date	Date of receipt		Name of consume r		Date of receipt	MCO No. & date	Name of consum cr	Catego	Date of receipt
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
Total														

ise			Single phase				Sec.
			wingsin product			10	XS:
Category	Date of receipt	MCO No. & date	Name of consumer	Category	Date of receipt	pendency	
18	19	20	21	22	23	:24	25
	18	18 19	18 19 20	18 19 20 21	18 19 20 21 22	18 19 20 21 22 23	Category Date of receipt MCO No. & date Name of consumer Category Date of receipt pendency 18 19 20 21 22 23 24



(IAR-1.35) (Para -22)

STATEMENT SHOWING THE DEVIATIONS IN METER MOVEMENT REGISTER.

S.No.	of	Statu s of	Cases in meters	issued	Cases in	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	0.0000	C.O.s	Balance O.K. m		Remove	d meters	not ente	red in	register	Rem
	JEN(s)	Regis ter	recor reas	ding	reco	nout rding sons	Three phase	Single phase	Three phase	Single phase	Remov ed against	Rem oved again	Total (12+ 3)	Ente red in	Diffe rence (14-	
			Three phase	Single phase	Three phase	Single phase					MCOs	st PDC	-,	regi	15)	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17
Total								-			12	1.5	.,	1.5		-

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Scal

(IAR-1.36) (Para -22)

STATEMENT SHOWING THE DEVIATIONS IN DISCONNECTION ORDER REGISTER.

S.	Name of	Status			s not entere				D	etails of	pending	DCOs		Rema
No.	JEN(s)	of Register	DCO No. & date	Date of receipt	Name of consumer	Cate	Amount outstand ing	DCO No. & date	Date of receip t	Name of consu mer	Cate	Amount outstand ing	Reasons of pendency	rks
1.	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
Total														



(IAR-1.37) (Para -22)

S.No.	Name of JEN(s)	Status of Register	1	Details of I	RCOs not ente	red		DC I TOIT	Pending Ro			Remarks
	-2(3)	register	RCO No. & date	Date of receipt	Name of consumer	Category	RCO No. & date	Date of receipt	Name of consumer	Category	of	
1	2	3	4	5		-	unte	receipt			pendency	
Total			-	-	0	-	- 8	9	10	- 11	12	13

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Seal

(IAR-1.38)

(Para -22)

S.No.	of	Status of Register	Irregula	urity in MAS A	Vc. if any		vork(s) /job(s	NTS REGIST) accounts of w ed in the regist	hich not prepared	Remarks
	JEN(s)		Work/job	Nature of irregularity	Amount involved if any	Work/job No. & date	Name of	Date of execution/ completion	Reasons for non preparation of MAS Accounts	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	0	10	
Total:					10		-	- /	10	11

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor alongwith Scal

(IAR-1.42) (Para -26.3(e))

-00 SYN-05203

S. No.	Special Audit Note No.	Date	Special Audit Observations		
1	2	Date	Special Audit Observations	Amount involved, if any	Remarks
1.	2	3	4	5 .	6
Total:					



Reporting format of Internal Audit Party of the submitted to the H.Q. through Zonal Accounts Officer

tal I der ndu	No		ated out by	the IAP
				Remark
Ti	Cases of Delay in issue of first bill/ pendency of SCOs and breach of	Found	Not Found	
		Found	Not Found	
h	Cases of Delay in compliance of SCOs (Delay in release of connections)	Found	Not Found	
	Cases of Delay in Issue of 1st BIII	Found	Not Found	1
- 1	The state of the s	FOUND	1104114	1
1	Cases of Breach of priority in release of connections			
1	Cases of Breach of priority in release of connections (Complete detail been submitted in the prescribed Performs along with photo copy of A-	Faund	Not Found	
_	49 register and computer output No. (20-21) Pendency of VCRs for their logical conclusion (being reported separately alongwith name	Fonun		_
	Pendency of VCRs for their logical concessor (come	Found	Not Found	
	of defaulters with the documentary support.) Allowing of Irregular and unauthorized credit (Complete details in annexure being	Podila		_
1.	Allowing of irregular and disconnentary support.) (IAR 1.18) reported separately with the documentary support.) and debit of dishonored cheques	Yes	No	T
_	the third Remittance & Recognitation Statement and well-	163		_
	checked or not. If yes whether any irregularity reported or not.	Yes	No	
-	checked or not. If yes whether any irregulantly reparted to the Whether the cases of left out outstanding & Negative Balances has been checked. Whether the cases of left out outstanding & Negative Balances has been checked.	_	No	_
5.	Whether the cases of left out outstanding & Negative Balances ray occurrence of JPR-5-234 & 267. Maintenance of settlement register in accordance with the provisions of JPR-5-234 & 267.	Yes	No	
6.	Maintenance of settlement register in accordance with the provident of left out. Audit of MCOS and timely compliance thereof has been carried out assessment of left out. Audit of MCOS and timely compliance thereof has been carried out assessment of left out.			1
7.	Audit of MCOS and timely compliance thereof has been carried of MCO issued, Compliance reading has been proposed by the party (Complete detail of MCO issued, Compliance			_
		Yes	No	-
-	made and pending is enclosed.) Load extension cases and their billing accordingly has been checked Load extension cases and their billing accordingly has been checked	Yes	No	1
9.	Detailed write in respect of consumers since whose will			-
3.	year or not deposited bill for more than 1 year year or not deposited bill for more than 1 year	Yes	No	-
10	Correctness of billing of consumers getting 24 riss stoppy managed correctly in case of	Yes	No	
11	First bills of Mobile/Telephote. (Complete detail of total No. of connections, No. of stopped/defective/burnt meters. (Complete detail of total No. of connections, No. of MCO based, Compliance made, pending makes found stopped burnt defective, No. of MCO based, Compliance made,	1		
L	and assessment prepared is enclosed.	Yes	No	
12	on undertaking has been checked. Cases of EUDR/LR Act prepared & process by sub-div. and progress made during audi	t		
1	 Cases of EUDR/LR Act prepared to prevent on period. [Complete detail of total No. of PDC connections, No. of cases prepared under EUDR/LI 			1
L	Act, further progress at DIV level and 1640 dated 8.10.09 4. CLRC record checked as per order No 1640 dated 8.10.09	Ye	_	+
1	4. CLRC record checked as per class	Ye		-
1	Fax machine is in order Computers installed in the sub division are in order Computers installed in the sub division are in order	Ye		+
1	A	Ye	s No	-
1		or	1	
1	 Compliance of cold strength of the strength of th	ту		

Submitted to the Chief Accounts Officer (Audit), ATMEROISCOM, ATTMEROISCOM, ATMEROISCOM, ATTMEROISCOM, ATMEROISCOM, ATMERO

Signature of incharge along with seal



Annexure- A

Abstract of name of Officers / Officials along with tenure responsible for delay in first billing during audit period

S.No.	Name of Officer/Official	Designation	Tenure Period	Item No. of the List	Total no.	Remark.
0.1.0.	Transcer Officer Officer	200.5				

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor along with Seal

Annexure- A-I

Statement showing cases of delay in first billing for the year.....

Sr. No.	Service No.	Name Of Consumer	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	Acc	75.55.55.5	Date	Date on	24-100	Del	lay in mont part of	 First Bill	Name	of the	detauite	
140.	No.	Consumor		t No.	which case sent to JEN	conne ction		Sent to the	JEN	Consumer Clerk	Issued on	AEN	JEN	ARO	CC Section/ LK

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor along with Seal

Annexure- B

Abstract of name of Officers / Officials along with tenure in case of pending SCOs during audit period.....

AD	stract of name of Officers / Offi			Item No. of the List	Total no.	Remark.
S.No.	Name of Officer/Official	Designation	Tenure Period	Item No. of the List	Total iio.	- Comment

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor along with Seal

Annexure- B-I

Statement showing cases of SCOs pending for compliance for the year.....

	1 - 7 1	N 06	Village	SCO No. &	Date on which	Date of	Duration of Delay in	Name of th	e defaulter
Sr. No.	Service No.	Name Of Consumer	V III II C	Date	case sent to JEN	connection	release connection	AEN	JEN
						-		-	
- 50						D	Name of Internal Audito	- alama mileh Ca	-1

				-
		ex		n
А	nr	ЮY	าน	

Abstract of name of Officers / Officials along with tenure in case of pending VCRs during audit period.....

Name of Sub-Div. Wing- O&M/ Vigilance

Officer/Official List	VCRs	
-----------------------	------	--

Dated Signature of Internal Auditor along with Seal

Annexure- C-I

Statement showing pending VCRs for logical conclusion for the year.....

Sr.No.	VCR No. & Date	Name of the consumer	Village	Acount No.	Category	Amount	Name of the VCR Filling Officer	Remark



Annexure D

Additional Formats are also required to be Annexed with the Audit Report.

a) Irregularities in the records of HT, MIP and SIP consumers ensuring that HT Binders and SIP Binders are duly filled regarding nature of supply, contract demand opted by consumer, ownership of transformer, CT/PT, LT/CT etc., Further, it must be ensure that all parameters of reading are recorded where trivector meter is installed and connected load having more than 25HP/ 18.65 KwH with special emphasis on Comml. AJ 194/398/699.

i. MIP-1st category (LT Supply- LT Metering)

		Statement si	howing deta	ail of M.I.P. connection	1	
Sr. No.	Name of Consumer/Firm	Sanctioned Load	Contract Demand opted	Ownership of Transformer/ CT/PT,LT/CT with checking of Multiplying factor (MF) with JIR	Excess MDI recorded more than 50 KVA during the year	Action taken

ii. MIP-2nd category(HT Supply- HT Metering)

				Ownership of		Excess		T
Sr. No	Name of Consum er/ Firm	Sanction ed Load	Contrac t Deman d opted	Transformer/ CT/PT, LT/CT with checking of Multiplying factor (MF) with JIR	Excess of demand surchar ge	MDI recorded more than 125 KVA during the year	Cost of burnt CT/PT Set and other miscellane ous charges	Acti on take

b) Checking of A-49 register in reference to pendency of SCOs for compliance, pendency of SCOs for billing, delay in issue of first bill and breach of priority in release of connections. The incompleteness of A-49 along with brief note mentioning the reason of actual delay on the part of JEN/ ARO/ CC Clerk.

Category	Particulars of pendency More than 3 months	Actual	pendenc	y level	Name(s) &		Remark
		CC Section	JEN	ARO	Designation(s) of defaulter(s)		
DL-LT1						(-)	
NDS-LT2							
STL-LT3							

AG-LT4		
SIP-LT5		
MIP-LT6		
MIX-LT7		
HT		
TOTAL		

c) Reconciliation of Revenue:

The audit team shall carry out the auditing of revenue reconciliation work in respect of

- (i) PCB with bank
- (ii) MIS with PCB.

While start of audit, the auditor first shall see whether reconciliation is being done or not by the sub-division. If not done yet, then he shall write to ARO immediately to complete the reconciliation within a period of 15 days. Thereafter after receipt of reconciliation statement, he shall then examine and report. If ARO does not submit reconciliation statement within 15 days, then audit team shall report to Zonal Sr. AO/AO for necessary action.

d) The audit team shall invariably record and enter all such consumers details against whom meter reader put remarks in binder leaf (A-10)/ A-30. No any such consumer should be left to be recorded in the below mentioned performa. This performs shall be checked by Internal Audit Party deputed for Sample test checking whether all such consumers have been entered.

Sr. No.	K No/ Consumer A/C No.	Category of consumer	Remark	Actio	on taken	Total Amount assessed	Special comments on malpractice in A-10/A-30 by Feeder Incharge and action taken
				No. of Para raised by auditor	Intimation to ARO/JEN/ AEN		

e) The audit team shall download all the sundry reports through the system and shall take print out and they shall audit the debit and credit transactions as per rules and enter OK against the entry which are found genuine and shall propose audit para against the remaining. No any entry shall be left unattended. This shall be examined thoroughly by Internal Audit Party deputed for Sample test checking.

Sr. Output Amount Dr./ CC&AR No. Name	Amount in CC&AR	Cr.	Auditor Remark	Amount of Para
---------------------------------------	-----------------------	-----	-------------------	-------------------

